Notice of Licensing Sub-Committee BCP

Council

Date: Monday, 2 September 2024 at 10.00 am

Venue: HMS Phoebe, BCP Civic Centre, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Membership:

Clir M Dower Clir G Farquhar Clir M Howell

Reserve:

Clir C Matthews

All Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are summoned to attend this meeting to
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6217
if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Democratic Services on 01202 096660 or

email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Oyt 510
_F.."I

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DEBAT

22 August 2024

on the Mod.gov app

Available online and

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct
Councillors should act solely
Declaring interests at meetings in terms of the public

Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in interest
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution. Integrity

Before the meeting, read the agenda and reports to see if the matters to be Councillors must avoid
discussed at the meeting concern your interests placing themselves under

any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Openness

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Councillors should act with
honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)
(set outin Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
| have a DPI and cannot take part without finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
a dispensation Registerable Interests (ORIs)
(set out in Table 2)?

| have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgementis clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but I have no interest to disclose
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your
participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the
item.

Bias Test Predetermination Test in situations where their
In all the circumstances, would it honesty and integrity may
lead a fair minded and informed At the time of making the decision, be questioned
observertg ggnclude that there was did the decision maker have a closed Leadership
a real possibility or a real danger that mind?
the decision maker was biased? Councillors should exhibit
. 4 these principles in their own
) . : 2 behaviour. They should
If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision, actively promote and
they must NOT participate in the meeting. robustly support the
. . . L - principles and be willing to
For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer challenge poor behaviour

(janie.berry@bcpcouncil.gov.uk) wherever it occurs



mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

1. Election of Chair

To elect a Chair of this meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee.

2. Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence from Members.

3. Declarations of Interests

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

4, Protocol for Public Speaking at Licensing Hearings 5-10

The protocol for public speaking at Licensing Sub Committee hearings is
included with the agenda sheet for noting.

5. Application for a Premises Licence at AFC Bournemouth - Match Days 11-64

The Licensing Authority has received an application on behalf of AFC
Bournemouth Ltd for a new premises licence at Vitality Stadium, Dean
Court, Kings Park, Bournemouth, for Match Days.

This matter is brought before the Licensing Sub Committee for
determination.

6. Application for a Premises Licence at AFC Bournemouth - Non- Match 65 - 122
Days

The Licensing Authority has received an application on behalf of AFC
Bournemouth Ltd for a new premises licence at Vitality Stadium, Dean
Court, Kings Park, Bournemouth, for Non Match Days.

This matter is brought before the Licensing Sub Committee for
determination.

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chair decides the matter is urgent for reasons that must
be specified and recorded in the Minutes.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

LICENSING COMMITTEE AND SUB COMMITTEE —PROTOCOL FOR
PUBLIC SPEAKING

1. Introduction

1.1  This protocol for public speaking applies to Licensing Committee and Sub
Committee hearings in relation to matters including the licensing of alcohol,
regulated entertainment, late night refreshment, gambling, sex establishments
and hackney carriage and private hire drivers, vehicles and operators, as set
out in Part 3.3 of the Council’s Constitution.

1.2 These matters are considered in accordance with relevant legislation and
associated regulations including the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011), the Gambling Act 2005,
Part Il and Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1982 (as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009) and
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

2. ConductofHearings

2.1  Chair welcomes everyone, matters of general housekeeping are dealt with,
notification that the hearing may be recorded for live and subsequent
broadcast on the Council’'s website, reminder to switch mobile phones to
silent, etc.

2.2  Chair asks everyone present to introduce themselves and state their role.

2.3  Chair checks that all persons who have given notice of their intention to speak
and any person who wishes to withdraw a representation or wishes not to
speak have been identified.

2.4  Chair explains proposed procedure and order of speaking for hearing as set
out in Appendix A or B of this protocol as appropriate. All parties confirm
agreement or make representations on procedure proposed.

2.5 Licensing Officer's report is presented.
2.6  Parties speak in the order agreed.

2.7  With the exception of hackney carriage and private hire hearings, parties who
are speaking should not repeat the information which they have already given
in writing in their representation. They will be able to expand on the written
information given, provided the information remains relevant. Any additional
information should be limited to the grounds of their representation(s). For
example, if they are objecting on the grounds of Public Nuisance, then they
should confine their comments to matters relating to Public Nuisance.



2.8 Members of the Licensing Committee or Sub Committee may ask questions
after each party has spoken and once all parties have spoken. Parties will be
allowed to ask questions through the Chair.

2.9 Once all parties have been heard, the parties will be given the opportunity to
sum up. Party who spoke first to go last. The hearing will then conclude.

2.10 Members will deliberate in private with the clerk and legal representative as
appropriate present.

2.11 The decisionwill be taken by the Committee and notification of the decision
will be given as follows:

2.11.1 For Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 hearings,
determination must be within the period of five working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held in
accordance with the relevant Regulations, unless otherwise specified
(for example, the issuing of a counter notice following objection to a
TEN, in which case the determination must be at the conclusion of the
hearing).

2.11.2 For Sex Establishment and other hearings, where possible
determination will be within the period of five working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held.

2.11.3 For Hackney Carriage and Private Hire hearings, notification of the
decision will be given at the conclusion of the hearing, followed by a
written decision letter where possible within the period of five working
days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was
held.

2.12 Notification of the decision will include information for all parties of any right of
appeal as appropriate.

3 General points

3.1 Hearings convened under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005
and associated regulations may be held remotely as required, if the Chairman
agrees it is expedient to do so in the circumstances.

3.2 The hearing may be adjourned at any time at the discretion of the Members.

3.3 Members may amend the procedure at any time if they consider it to be in the
public interest or in the interest of a fair hearing.

3.4  The Sub Committee may decide to conduct all or part of a hearing in non-
public session in accordance with the relevant Regulations and/or where
exempt information is likely to be disclosed.



3.5 The Chair may exclude any person from a hearing for being disruptive.

3.6  Meetings of the Licensing Committee in public session are recorded by the
Council for live and subsequent broadcast on its website.

3.7  The hearing will take the form of a discussion.

3.8  Only persons (or their representatives) who have made an application, are
subject to an application or have submitted a written representation or
objection to the Licensing Authority under the relevant Act are permitted to
speak at the hearing.

3.9 Any further information to support an application, representation, objection or
notice (as applicable) can be submitted before the hearing. It may only be
submitted at the hearing with the consent of all parties in accordance with any
relevant Regulations. Wherever possible the Licensing Authority encourages
parties to submit information at the earliest opportunity to allow sufficient time
for this to be considered before the hearing and avoid the need for
adjournment.

3.10 If a party has informed the Authority that they do not intend to participate, or
be represented at the hearing, or has failed to advise whether they intend to
participate or not, the hearing may proceed in their absence.

3.11 For other matters which are the responsibility of the Licensing Committee and
not included in this protocol, the Meeting Procedure Rules in Part 4D of the
Council’'s Constitution in relation to public questions, statements and petitions
shall apply. This includes such matters as making recommendations on
relevant licensing policies, approving the level of fees charged by the Council,
and making decisions on tariffs charged by the Public Carriage Trade.

3.12 The Council’'s Constitution can be accessed using the following link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteelD=151&
Info=1&bcr=1

For further information please contact democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
mailto:democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Appendix A

Proposedprocedure and order of speakingfor hearings (other than
hackney carriage and private hire hearings)

1. The Licensing Officer presents report.

2. Questions of the Licensing Officer on their report. Members of the Sub-
Committee to go first, then the applicant/licence holder.

3. Applicant will make their Application.

4. Questions of the Applicant by all parties, Members of the Committee/Sub-
Committee to go first.

5. Responsible Authorities and Other Persons will make their representations.

6. Questions of the Responsible Authorities and Other Persons. Members of the
Committee/Sub-Committee to go first.

7. All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke
last to go first). The hearing will then conclude.

8. Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present.
(Councillors new to Licensing may observe but will not take part in the
decision making).

9. Notification of the Sub Committee’s decision will be given in accordance with
the requirements of the Licensing Act and Gambling Act regulations. For other
hearings, where possible determination will be within the period of five
working days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was
held.

10.The notification of decision will include information about the right of appeal as
appropriate.



Appendix B

Proposedprocedure and order of speaking for Hackney Carriage
and Private Hire hearings

1.

2.

The Licensing Officer presents their report.

Questions of the Licensing Officer on their report. Members of the Sub-
Committee to go first, then the applicant/licence holder.

Applicant/licence holder presents their case.

Questions of the applicant/licence holder by all parties, Members of the
Committee/Sub-Committee to go first.

All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke
last to go first). The Hearing will then conclude.

Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present.
(Councillors new to Licensing may observe deliberations but will not take part
in the decision making).

Notification of the decision will be given following deliberations at the
conclusion of the hearing, to be followed by a written decision letter where
possible within the period of five working days beginning with the day or the
last day on which the hearing was held.

The Legal Adviser will advise parties of any right of appeal as appropriate at
the conclusion of the Hearing. Information about the right of appeal as
appropriate will also be included in the written decision letter.

Adopted by the Licensing Committee on 7.12.23



This page is intentionally left blank

10



Agenda ltem 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Application for a Premises Licence at AFC Bournemouth -
Match Days

Meeting date 2 September 2024

Status Public Report

Executive summary Mr Paul Fudge has made an application on behalf of AFC
Bournemouth Ltd for 2 new premises licences at Vitality Stadium,
Dean Court, Kings Park, Bournemouth.

The venue currently benefits from one premises licence covering
all licensable activity at the premises. AFC Bournemouth Ltd have
made the decision to apply for 2 premises licences, one to cover
match day activities and one to cover non match day activities.

These applications have been made to enable the existing licence
to be split between match day events and non-match day
entertainment events and reflect the licensable activity, hours and
conditions that are appropriate for each type of event.

The Licensing Authority has received representations from 2 other
persons in respect of each of the applications on the grounds that
to grant the application would undermine the prevention of public
nuisance licensing objective. The representations are identical for
each application. No representations have been made by a
Responsible Authority.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

a) Grant the application for a premises licence as made;
b) Refuse the application for a premises licence,;
¢) Grant the premises licence subject to additional conditions.

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to make a
decision at the end of the hearing after all relevant parties
have been given the opportunity to speak. Members must give
full reasons for their decision.

Reason for The Licensing Authority may only consider aspects relevant to the
recommendations application that have been raised in representation.

Where representations have been received in relation to an
application by a responsible authority or any other person, and the
concerns have not been resolved through mediation between all

11




parties, the Scheme of Delegation set out in the Council’s
Constitution states that these applications should be dealt with by
the Licensing Sub-Committee.

12




Portfolio Holder(s):

Services.

ClIr Kieron Wilson — Portfolio Holder for Housing, and Regulatory

Corporate Director

Jillian Kay — Corporate Director for Wellbeing

Report Authors

Ellie King — Licensing Officer

Wards

Littledown & Iford:;

Classification

For Decision

Background

1. Application was made by Mr Paul Fudge on behalf of AFC Bournemouth Ltd on 15
July 2024 for 2 premises licences. As set out in the executive summary above these
applications have been made to split the existing licence to cover match day and
non-match day activities.

2. The table below sets out the differences between the existing licence and the
applications being considered.

Licensable activity | Existing Licence — | Match day Non-Match Day
All events application application

Films (Indoors and | Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur

Outdoors) 10:00 to 01:00 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat Fri — Sat

10:00 to 01:30
Sun
10:00 to 00:00

09:00 to 01:30
Sun
09:00 to 00:00

Indoor Sporting Not included on Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
Events this licence 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat
09:00 to 01:30
Sun
09:00 to 00:00
Live Music Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
(Indoors and 10:00 to 01:00 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
Outdoors) Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun
10:00 to 00:00 09:00 to 00:00
Recorded Music Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur

(Indoors and

10:00 to 01:00

09:30 to 23:00

09:00 to 01:00

13




Outdoors) Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun
10:00 to 00:00 09:00 to 00:00
Performances of Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
Dance 10:00 to 01:00 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
(Indoors and Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
Outdoors) 10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun

10:00 to 00:00

09:00 to 00:00

Activity like Music | Mon — Thur Not included on Not included on
and Dance 10:00 to 01:00 this application this application
Fri — Sat
(Indoors and 10:00 to 01:30
Outdoors) Sun
10:00 to 00:00
Late Night Mon — Thur Not included on Mon — Thur
Refreshment 23:00 to 01:30 this application 23:00 to 01:30
Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
(Indoors and 23:00 to 02:00 23:00 to 02:00
Outdoors) Sun Sun

23:00 to 00:00

23:00 to 00:00

Supply of Alcohol
(On and Off sales)

Mon — Thur
10:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30
Sun

10:00 to 00:00

Mon-Sun
09:30 to 23:00

Mon — Thur
09:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat
09:00 to 01:30
Sun

09:00 to 00:00

3. The licence conditions attached to each licence application have also been

amended to reflect conditions appropriate to the event type.

4. A copy of the existing licence is attached at appendix 1

5. A copy of the application for match day events is attached at appendix 2

6. A location plan is attached at appendix 3.

Consultation

7. The applications were served on all responsible authorities. The applicant
confirmed that the statutory notices were displayed on site and published in the local

newspaper.

8. The applications prompted representations from 2 other persons under the
prevention of public nuisance Licensing objective.

9. A copy of the representations received is attached at appendix 4.

14




10. Mr Fudge has contacted the other persons who have made representation against
the applications with a view to mediation, however at the time of preparing this
report mediation has not been successful and the representations stand.

11. Copies of the emails sent from Mr Fudge to the other persons are attached at
appendix 5 and 6.

12. There are no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities.

Options Appraisal
13. Before making a decision, Members are asked to consider the following matters:
e The representations made by the 2 other persons
e The relevant licensing objectives, namely the prevention of public nuisance

e The Licensing Act 2003, appropriate Regulations, Statutory Revised
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (December
2023) and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy

Summary of financial implications

14. An appeal may be made against the decision of the Sub-Committee by the applicant
or any party making representation to the Magistrates’ Court which could have a
financial impact on the Council.

Summary of legal implications

15. If Members decide to determine the application or attach conditions to the licence, in
a way which the applicant or those making representations do not agree to, then
those parties may appeal to the Magistrate’s Court within a period of 21 days
beginning with the day such parties are notified in writing, of the decision.

Summary of human resources implications
16. There are no human resources implications.

Summary of sustainability impact

17. There are no sustainability impact implications.

Summary of public health implications

18. There are no public health implications.

Summary of equality implications

19. There are no equality implications.

Summary of risk assessment

20. There are no risk assessment implications

Background papers
BCP Council — Statement of Licensing Policy

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s21122/Statement%200f%20Licensing
%20Policy.pdf

15


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s21122/Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s21122/Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy.pdf

Hearing Regulations

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/made

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (December
2023)

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
(publishing.service.gov.uk)

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Existing AFC Bournemouth Licence

Appendix 2 - Application form - Match Day Events

Appendix 3 - Location Plan

Appendix 4 - Copy of representations

Appendix 5 - Applicant response to James and Carol Hartley

Appendix 6 - Applicant response to Jon Hartley

16


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf

Licensing Team Append|x 1 BCP

BCP Council Civic Centre Council
Bourne Avenue
Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Premises Licence
Part A

Premises licence number: BH149278

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

AFC Bournemouth Dean Court Kings Park Drive

Post town: Bournemouth | Post Code: BH7 7AF

Telephone number:

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Films

Live Music

Recorded Music
Performances of Dance
Activity like Music / Dance
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Films

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00
Exhibition of films will take place indoors and outdoors
Live Music

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00
Performance of live music will take place indoors and outdoors
Recorded Music

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00
Playing of recorded music will take place indoors and outdoors
Performances of Dance
Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

17



Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Performance of dance will take place indoors and outdoors

Activity like Music / Dance

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday - 10:00 to 01:30

Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Entertainment will take place indoors and outdoors of anything of a similar description that falls within
live music, recorded music and performance of dance

Late Night Refreshment

Monday - 23:00 to 01:30

Tuesday - 23:00 to 01:30

Wednesday - 23:00 to 01:30

Thursday - 23:00 to 01:30

Friday - 23:00 to 02:00

Saturday - 23:00 to 02:00

Sunday - 23:00 to 00:30

Provision of late-night refreshments will take place indoors and outdoors

Supply of Alcohol

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday - 10:00 to 01:30

Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Non-Standard timings for all above licensable activities

An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s,
St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s and St David’s days; 10-14 December and Boxing Day and from terminal
hour on New Year’s Eve to commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to terminal
hour on change from GMT to BST.

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday - 07:00 to 01:30

Tuesday - 07:00 to 01:30

Wednesday - 07:00 to 01:30

Thursday - 07:00 to 01:30

Friday - 07:00 to 02:00

Saturday - 07:00 to 02:00

Sunday - 07:00 to 00:30

Non-standard timings

An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s,
St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s and St David’s days; 10-14 December and Boxing Day and from terminal
hour on New Year’s Eve to commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to terminal
hour on change from GMT to BST.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies:

Alcohol will be consumed on and off the premises

18




Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:

Vitality Stadium

AFC Bournemouth Limited
Dean Court

Kings Park

Bournemouth

BH7 7AF

| el I

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable):

06632170

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Mr Paul Andrew Fudge

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Bournemouth Borough Council

19



Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

Mandatory Conditions (Sections 19,20,21 LA 2003)

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

There shall be no sale or supply of alcohol when there is no designated premises supervisor in
respect of this premises licence or at a time when the said premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or when his/her licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

Any person used to carry out a security activity as required under conditions 2.2.3, 2.6.1, 2.11, 2.25,
2.26 and 2.34 below must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Admission of children (under the age of 18) to any exhibition of films must be restricted in
accordance with the film classification body designated as the authority under Section 4 of the
Video Recordings Act 1984.

Where the film classification is not specified, or the relevant licensing authority has notified the
premises licence holder under Section 20 (3)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003, the admission of children
must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the Licensing Authority.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014

1.6.

1.7.

1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange
or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2. In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —

(@) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on
the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised
to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti- social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

20



1.8.

1.9.

(@)
(b)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

a holographic mark, or

an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that -

(@)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures—

beer or cider: Yz pint;

gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014

1.10.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(@)  “duty”is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+(DxV)
Where —

P is the permitted price,

D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

21



(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest
penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph
2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

General (External Areas)

2.1.

2.2.

With the exception of the areas edged blue on the licence plans, use of temporary facilities in the
external area will be subject to agreement with the Licensing Authority, Police and Environmental
Health Team at least 21 days before the event (or 28 days if a major event) as to the use of the
area, size, layout including barriers, security, capacity, and means of control (including any
necessary noise controls).

2.1.1 A Noise Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Environmental Health team at least 21 days prior to the event or 28 days if a major event.

2.1.2 A ‘major event’ is one where capacity is expected to exceed 500.

The use of the external areas edged blue on the licence plans shall be subject to the following
additional conditions:-

2.2.1 The area shall be physically demarked by barriers as indicated on the attached plan and
covered by CCTV which shall be operational (subject to unforeseen fault) at all times the area
is open to the public.

2.2.2 Only home fans shall be admitted to the area on production of the match ticket.

2.2.3 Whilst the area is available to the public SIA licensed security personnel wearing high visibility
top shall be deployed as follows: two at the entrance to the area and one at the exit gate.

2.2.4 All drinks must be served in plastic bottles or drinking vessels which cannot be removed from
the area.

22



2.2.5 The bar shall close, and the barriers shall be removed no later than 15 minutes before kick-
off, and the structure housing the bar shall be secured.

2.2.6 A clicker or similar device shall be used to ensure that the agreed maximum capacity of the
area is not exceeded.

2.2.7 No provision of regulated entertainment shall be permitted in this area.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

2.3.

24.

2.5.

2.6.1

The CCTV system shall remain installed. CCTV recordings/images shall be retained for at least a
calendar month and these shall be made available to the Police on request (subject to the Data
Protection Act 1998).

The operators shall attend such Safety Advisory Group (SAG) meetings as the appropriate
authorities may require in respect of designated sporting events, and shall implement the controls
agreed at such meetings/with the SAG members.

On match days and when an event involving musical regulated entertainment is held at the
premises with a terminal hour of or later than midnight, the operators shall implement the Dispersal
Policy agreed with the Police and Environmental Health team.

Names and badge numbers of all SIA licensed security personnel to be provided by promoters will
be forwarded to the Police at least 7 days in advance of an event with external regulated
entertainment.

Designated Sporting Events (Match days)

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

The operator shall use best practicable means to ensure that those attending designated sporting
events (match days) do not commit an offence under the Sporting Events (Control of Alcohol etc)
Act 1985 whilst they are on the licensed premises.

On match days, the sale and supply of alcohol shall be limited as set out below or for any longer
hours that may be agreed with the Police and Licensing authority :

2.7.1. Stand facilities in view of the playing area - no alcohol shall be sold during the restricted
period (15 minutes before the start of the event to 15 minutes after the end of the event).

On match days, any area from which the playing area may be viewed at any time during the
restricted period will be "prohibited areas". In the event that alcohol is sold in any area on the
concourse which has direct access to any prohibited area signage must be clearly displayed
advising of this prohibition. Staff shall regularly check areas where alcohol is being supplied during
the restricted period to prevent alcohol being taken into the prohibited areas.

Alcohol sold from structures and facilities on the ground floor concourses shall be dispensed in
plastic or waxed paper containers.

Security personnel (licensed with the SIA where necessary) shall be provided and deployed as
agreed at SAG meetings.

A Personal Licence holder (or such other person agreed by the Police) whose details shall be made
known to relevant SAG members shall be on duty during the restricted period.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

2.12.

2.13.

Regulated entertainment shall only be permitted (unless otherwise authorised by the Police and
Licensing Authority) in the West Stand, in the Main Stadium outside or in such outdoor areas as
may be agreed by the Environmental Health Team.

Adequate parking and access shall be maintained.

23



2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

The public-address system and external microphone/s used on match days shall only operate from
approximately 1 hour before kick off, during half time and immediately after the match.

A restrictive barrier in the form of lockable posts shall be installed and thereafter maintained across
the Thistlebarrow Road entrance to the football ground.

Access and egress through the restrictive barrier shall only be available on match days up to 2
hours after the end of a match and at any time for use by emergency vehicles.

Prominent notices shall be displayed within the premises directing persons to exit towards Kings
Park Drive and to respect the residential nature of the area and to leave the area quickly and quietly.

Indoor Requlated Entertainment

The following steps shall be implemented when amplified musical regulated entertainment (the event) is
scheduled to be provided after 22:59:

2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

2.23.

2.24.

2.25.

Any doors or windows from the room where the event is being held which open directly to the
outside shall be kept closed, except to allow people to enter and leave.

Air circulation or conditioning shall be provided in such rooms.

A member of staff shall have the responsibility of monitoring noise levels from the event at the
boundaries near neighbouring noise sensitive premises at least hourly. If music noise from the
event can be heard, immediate steps shall be taken to turn the music down to an acceptable level.

Residents of neighbouring noise sensitive premises shall be given a telephone contact number
which shall ensure that they can speak to a responsible member of management and/or staff if they
have any complaints. Any such complaints received shall be investigated immediately and
appropriate remedial action taken if and as necessary.

A log shall be maintained of monitoring results and any complaints, and shall be produced on
request to a Police or Local Authority authorised officer.

Performers shall be advised of the need to keep music output at acceptable levels and to respond
immediately to any request from staff to reduce the volume.

Staff and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on leaving of the need to do so
quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the area. Notices shall also be displayed
near the exits to this effect and additionally asking those customers with vehicles to leave by the
Kings Park Drive exit.

A risk assessment shall be affected if the event proposes to have the entertainment until the
terminal hour permitted by the Licence and the appropriate number of door supervisors shall be
engaged. Their responsibilities shall include monitoring the customers as they leave the premises
and encouraging them to leave the premises and the area quickly and quietly. Details of any
customer unwilling to respond to such requests shall be taken and given to management with a
view to a future bar.

Qutdoor Requlated Entertainment

2.26.

2.27.

Entertainment shall only be permitted in the area, for the event and during the daylight hours (not
starting prior to 10:00 nor ending after 22:00) agreed with the Environmental Health team, the
Licensing Authority and the Police.

Unless agreed with the Environmental Health team, the Licensing Authority and the Police (with
the exception of sporting events):

2.27.1 There shall be no amplification of the musical regulated entertainment.

24



2.28.

2.27.2 Such entertainment shall be limited to a maximum duration of 4 hours on no more than 15
days in each calendar year on dates agreed with the Environmental Health team.

2.27.3 No outside entertainment shall be permitted until the plan relating to outside entertainment
has been submitted to and agreed by the Environmental Health team at least 21 days prior
to the (first) event. The said Plan shall be adhered to at all times during outside
entertainment.

If the outside entertainment for which permission is sought is of the nature of an open-air concert,
and/or involves amplified musical regulated entertainment (with the exception of sporting events
held in the stadium), a noise assessment to determine the suitability of the stadium for the same
shall be undertaken in relation to residential properties, and shall accompany the request for
agreement for such an event. If appropriate, that assessment shall specifically refer to the Noise
Council's Code of Practice on the Control of Noise from Concerts or any such Code that may have
superseded the same.

Protection of Children from Harm

2.29.

2.30.

Bar staff shall be trained to prevent underage sales, which shall include a requirement to request
identification from any persons who look under 21 years before they are sold alcohol.

2.29.1 The only forms of ID that are acceptable shall be those required by mandatory condition.

2.29.2 Signs shall be displayed that clearly state the forms of ID that shall be required and
accepted.

When operating an under 18 event, a risk assessment shall be effected and made available to a
Police officer on request. The assessment shall take account of, amongst other things, the number
and deployment of staff including security personnel, and the measures to be put into place to
prevent alcohol being brought onto site or available for under 18s on site.

Public Safety

2.31.

The appropriate Health & Safety Risk Assessment will be effected in respect of the erection of any
temporary structure to be used to ensure its suitability and details will be provided to and agreed
with the Environmental Health Team before the event. Overall responsibility for such health and
safety will remain with the Premises Licence holder.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

None

Annex 4 — Plans

This licence is issued in accordance with the following plans —

Perimeter and South Stand site plans M205631 dated 28.04.23

Layout plans dated 04 Feb 2016, 05 Feb 2016 and 14 Jan 2017 M149278 A-D / M149278 E- E3 and
M154770 A.

25



ALt 816nD

TuELE HLEEW

REET £1aHD

Perimeter Site Plan

M205631 dated 28.04.23

26



i i E

NG E R R S R e e e
LS R e

SRR I ! _m H
et s et fllg w !
w i -m il Bl
T = — R e e —
)3 e S WO RN . i SRR SO

L. Fi [

R or) i

SO

N
u#w -

%

s
- &
-;fa—

— s

; | ! R D i :
| B Tl I ™
q " , s
£ f h i =
g | H P
=L, o 5 L4 3 | S = 0,
! ] H] / B vd
1 \, \\
£ .k i | e S 1 _H&..
| { :
R | L

i

Y,

et

L M
LI |
1 N

_ | .

| - el

| =
o

T
. g
i -

| o, S RPN LR * 5 ;
L b | e P DR, S [ e
e I s e e e . o Wl
e ——— 1 ./ |3
[ s liGail i
7 RTCRLE T i i
[P ——

27

M205631 dated 28.04.23

South Stand



U] 00| Puncus puky; a3

Our ref: LEAPYV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRFO1191

28



22t T bh( W oN 434
03A0YddY

202 824 5
NOILO3S INISKION
TIINNMO HONCHOE HLNCINANGNOE

=

Sl

YnLE. Vhadsite
U Param O

E;
© e on

Drasixgtin

Oz

0% o
e
Surmer

HORTH STARIYFLOOR FLA

GINEER 2275

o
100 141}

T
[ it

Geouealis Survayors
ART BOURKENOUTH
SCLIBNS ST
PR
BOLRNCMOUTH
TGS Shent taty

i

AN

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRF01191

Ground Floor Plan

North Stand

29

—

0 susDaNded | fales caling

~Cailng buights.

07 Jsus” - Cailng haights

Go)
g

B

A

it




South Stand

Ground Floor Plan

UG08 -Shea1 ¢}

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRF01191

Annotations

el

i - e raghts
EF T s

ta susparded ! felse celig

CETon. SeuSoe.

® (Al FowT

e
@ ¢ ¥

A

s e
——

e = e
———— — = Fee
pie —] ™~ -|_I|L oy =
pe— 7 v .
e T pe—
= =, ——
——— = varsemn) ————
—— e P

BOLRNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING SECTION

b5 FEB 2018

APPROVED
REF. No. M 14.9 > 330

30




o of e SeuSal.
& Caz (4

6 LT CPesu A

e rth.oef B

{ A4

BOURNEMOUTH BORGUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING SECTION -

L5 Fea g

APPROVED
REF. No. M lag29%,, L

S
3
i
o
o
a
@
S
&
3
a
g
=]
'_U
=
g

s ST .
YR REEBROLTS )
TR

ighgtbbge o g ‘
¥

LT HETEH
i ?‘%3%5515 |

e i

31

Our ref: LEAPv1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRF01191



¥y o

LE3

:

X e Oicod

LA

P ey Lo

® don oo

SemSol

West Stand First Floor Plan

BOURNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNGIL
LIGENSING SECTION

(5 Ft3 /06

APPROVED
REF. No. M 1492 3%,

149278: MRFO1191

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.:

32



1
i

}f]] il

i

|

RN IRE NN I

West Stand Second Floor Plan

BOURNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REF. No. M/ 9238,

b L Uiy [
&
PR TR
Liwey "1\{_1

“rvvam )

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRFO1191

33




Premises Licence
Part B
Premises licence number: BH149278

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

AFC Bournemouth Dean Court Kings Park Drive

Post town: Bournemouth | Post Code: BH7 7AF

Telephone number:

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Activity like Music / Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply
of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Films (Indoors and Outdoors) Late Night Refreshment (Indoors and Outdoors)

Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 Monday to Thursday - 23:00 to 01:30

Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 Friday and Saturday - 23:00 to 02:00

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00 Sunday - 23:00 to 00:30

Live Music (Indoors and Outdoors) Supply of Alcohol

Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00 Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Recorded Music (Indoors and Outdoors) Non-Standard timings for all above licensable activities
Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to
Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s, St Patrick’s, St
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00 Andrew’s and St David’'s days; 10-14 December and Boxing
Performances of Dance (Indoors and Outdoors) Day and from terminal hour on New Year's Eve to
Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 commencement of hours on New Year's Day. An additional
Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 hour to terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Activity like Music / Dance (Indoors and Outdoors)

Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Thursday 07:00 to 01:30, Friday and Saturday - 07:00 to 02:00, Sunday - 07:00 to 00:30
Non-standard timings:

An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s, St Patrick’s, St
Andrew’s and St David’s days; 10-14 December and Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to
commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies:

Alcohol will be consumed on and off the premises

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence:

Vitality Stadium, AFC Bournemouth Limited, Dean Court, , Kings Park, Bournemouth, BH7 7AF

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable):

06632170

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Mr Paul Andrew Fudge

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

Conditions 1.4 and 1.5

Issued: 5 February 2016 Mrs Nananka Randle
Revised: 2 August 2023 (Minor Variation) Licensing Manager

34




BCP Council

APPENDIX 2

Application for a premises licence to be granted

under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form. please read the cuidance notes at the end of the form. If vou are completing
this form by hand. please write lezibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that vour answers are inside

the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets it necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We AFC Bourmnemouth Ltd.

flnsert name(s) of applicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing

authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or. if none. ordnance survev map reference or description

Vitality Stadium
Dean Count
Kings Park

Post town Bournemouth

Postcode BH7 7AF

Telephone number at premises (if any) _

Non-domestic rateable valte of premises £655,000

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether vou are applving for a premises licence as

Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * ]
b) a person other than an individual *
i. asalimited company [X]

ii. as apartnership
i, as an unincorporated association or

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation)

D O34dad

c) a recognised club

35

please complete section (A)

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)




d)
e)

f)

ga)

h)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

a charity
the proprietor of an educational establishment
a health service body

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the Care
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an independent
hospital in Wales

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1
of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the

meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in

England

the chief officer of police of a police force in England
and Wales

Please tick yes

O000O

[

[

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises for
licensable activities: or

[ am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function or

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

N

Mr

] Mrs [ ] Miss [ ] Ms []

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Surname

First names

[ am 18 vears old or over

[]  Please tick ves

Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

36




SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Other Title (for
D example. Rev)

Mr [] Mrs [] Miss [ ] Ms

Surname First names

[ am 18 years old or over Il Please tick yes

Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body
corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
AFC Bournemouth Ltd.

Address

Vitality Stadium
Dean Courl
Kings Park
Bournemouth

Registered number (where applicable)

06632170

Description of applicant (for example. partnership, company. unincorporated association etc.)

Limited Company

Telel)hone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

37




Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start? As soon as possible

If vou wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period. when do you DD MM YYYY
want it to end? P LTl g

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

This Premises Licence is intended to be utilised when delivering licensable activities alongside football
events/fixtures at the stadium. All other legislation relating to football events will be met separately to this
Premises Licence.

Alongside a separate Premises Licence intended to meet the requirements for Hospitality and Corporate
Events at this stadium, this Premises Licence is intended to replace Premises Licence No. BH149278
which will be surrendered upon grant of the two replacement licences. No additional provision is being
sought through this application process.

[t is anticipated that two separate Premises Licences to meet the different purposes of the stadium and
associated hospitality spaces will ensure that appropriate conditions can be attributed for each bespoke
tvpe of event. whether a football or corporate / hospitality event.

[ 5.000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, 14.999
please state the number expected to attend. :

What licensable activities do vou intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick any that

Provision of regulated entertainment
g apply

a)  plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b)  films (if ticking yes. fill in box B)

¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking ves, fill in box C)

d)  boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking ves. fill in box D)

e)  live music (if ticking ves. fill in box E)

X X O KX K O

f)  recorded music (if ticking ves. fill in box F)

X

g)  performances of dance (if ticking ves. fill in box G)

anvthing of a similar description to that falling within (e). () or ()
(if ticking ves. fill in box H)

]

38




Provision of late night refreshment (it ticking ves. fill in box I)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking ves. fill in box J) <

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

B
Films Will the performance of live music take place
Standard days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please [ndoors
(please read guidance note | read guidance note 2)
6) Outdoors ]
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 0930 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue 10930 | 2300
Wed 0930 2300 State any seasonal variations for the films (please read guidance note 4)
Thur 1 0930 | 2300
Fri 0930 2300 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
= films at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 3)
Sat 03 73 ) . . . .
0930 2300 This provision shall be extended for one further hour bevond the terminal
hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football match is
1900hrs or later.
Sun 0930

2300

39




C

Indoor Sporting Events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

6)

Day Start Finish

Mon | 0930 | 2300

Tue 10930 | 2300

Wed 0930 2300 State any seasonal variations for the indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur 10930 | 2300

Fri 0930 2300 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat 3 2 . : :

0830 2300 This provision shall be extended for one further hour beyond the terminal

hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football match is
1900hrs or later.

Sun | 0930 | 2300

40




Live music
Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note

Will the performance of live music take place

indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please [ndoors L]

read guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors ]
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 0930 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue 10930 | 2300
Wed 0930 2300 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please
= read guidance note 4)
Thur 10930 | 2300
Fri 0930 2300 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)
Sat 3 23
0930 4340 This provision shall be extended for one further hour beyond the terminal
hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football match is
1900hrs or later.
Sun 2300

41




Recorded music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Day Start Finish

Will the plaving of recorded music take place
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please

Indoors |

read guidance note 2)

[

Outdoors

Both 4

Mon | 0930 2300

Tue 0930 2300

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Wed | 0930 2300

State anv seasonal variations for the plavine of recorded music (please

Thur | 0930 2300

read guidance note 4)

Fri 0930 2300

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
playving of recorded music at different times to those listed in the column

Sat 0930 2300

Sun 0930 2300

on the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)

This provision shall be extended for one further hour beyond the terminal
hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football match is
1900hrs or later.

42




G

Performances of dance

Will the performance of dance take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read [ndoors L]

(please read guidance note | guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors ]

Day Start Finish Both X

Mon 0930 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 10930 | 2300

Wed 0930 2300 State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur 10930 | 2300

Fri 0930 2300 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)

Sat 3 23 . . . . ;

0930 2309 T'his provision shall be extended for one further hour beyvond the terminal

hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football match is

: 1900hrs or later.

Sun 2300

43




Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption — On the

Standard days a.nd timings | please tick (please read guidance note 7) premises O

(please read guidance note

6) Off the ]
premises

Day Start Finish Both X

Mon 0930 2300 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read

guidance note 4)

Tue 0930 2300

Wed | 0930 2300

Thur 0930 2300 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
------ supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the

left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri 0930 2300

I'his provision shall be extended for one further hour beyond the terminal
hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football match is

1900hrs or later.
Sat 0930 2300

Sun 0930 2300

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated
premises supervisor:

Name

Address

Postcode I -

Personal licence number (if known)
BH16329

Issuing licensing authority (it known)

Bournemouth Borough Council (now BCP Council)

44




K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read
guidance note 8).

No such licensable activities are required.

Hours premises are open | State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4)
to the public

Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Day Start Finish

Mon | 0700 2339

Tue 0700 2359

Wed | 0700 2359

Non standard timings. Where vou intend the premises to be open to the
public at different times from those listed in the column on the left,

Thur 1 0700 2359 please list (please read guidance note 5)

The opening hours shall be extended for one further hour beyond the

Fri 0700 2359 terminal hour for occasions when the scheduled start time of the football
match is 1900hrs or later.

Sat 0700 2359

Sun 0700 2359

45




M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 9)

All relevant Mandatory Conditions will apply to this Application.

Safetv Advisorv Group (SAG)

The operators shall attend such Safety Advisory Group (SAG) meetings as the appropriate authorities may
reasonably require in respect of designated sporting events and shall implement any reasonable controls
and policies agreed at such meetings/with the SAG members.

Football Legislation Compliance

The Premises Licence Holder will implement all reasonable measures to ensure that those attending
“designated sporting events™ do not commit an offence under the Sporting Events (Control of Alcohol etc)
Act 1985 whilst they are present on the licensed premises.

No alcohol shall be sold during the restricted period (15 minutes before the start of the event until 15
minutes after the end of the event) for locations within view of the playing area.

Any area from which the match may be viewed at any time during the restricted period will be "prohibited
areas". If alcohol is sold in any area on the concourse which has direct access to any prohibited area
signage must be clearly displaved advising of this prohibition. Statf shall regularly check areas where
alcohol is being supplied during the restricted period to prevent alcohol being taken into the prohibited
areas.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

SIA Security

The holder of the licence shall undertake a risk assessment regarding the deplovment of SIA Door
Supervisors at different times of the day and on different days of the event to determine the appropriate
number of SIA staff are deploved on those days and/or at any other time(s) and to then implement the
outcome of the risk assessment. A copy of the risk assessment should be made available to an authorised
officer of the Licensing Authority or Dorset Police upon request and for a period of up to 6 months.

The Premises Licence Holder (PLH)/Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) will ensure that a written
record of all SIA staff deployed to the event is maintained on the premises.

The Premises Licence holder will ensure that all SIA staff are clearly identifiable to the public. through

wearing high-visibility outer garments whilst on duty. and that a minimum of 4 x SIA Door Supervisors
shall be on the premises whilst licensable activities are taking place. Additional staff to be deploved in

accordance with the Risk Assessment. which include advice and guidance from Dorset Police and other
Responsible Authorities.

Incident Log / Refusal Log

All bars will have a Refusal Record which will be available on request to any authorised authority.
including Dorset Police and BCP Licensing Authority officers. This record will include reasons for refusal
and what action was taken. This record will be retained by the Premises Licence Holder for a minimum

46




period of 6 months.

An Incident Record shall be kept and maintained at the premises whilst licensable activities are taking
place. The log should include the date and time of the incident and the name of the staff and other
individuals involved (where known). The record will be made available on request to an authorised officer
of BCP Council or Dorset Police and will record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the site staff

(b) all ejections of patrons from the site

(¢) any complaints received

(d) any incidents of disorder known to the staff or security

(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons at the entrance or elsewhere within the site
(f) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Personal Licence Holder

There shall always be a Personal Licence Holder (PLH) on duty on the premises when the premises are
providing licensable activities. The DPS will maintain a record of all PLH’s throughout each event and
this record will be retained by the Premises Licence Holder for a minimum of 6 months.

South Stand Hospitality (denoted Blue on the attached plan)

This area shall be subject to the following additional conditions: -

The bar shall close, and the barriers shall be removed no later than 15 minutes before kick-off, and the
structure housing the bar shall be secured.

A clicker or similar device shall be used to ensure that the agreed maximum capacity of the area is not
exceeded.

CCTV

A Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) system will be always operational at the premises when licensable
activities are being carried out and at any other times when members of the public associated with the
event are present on the premises.

The CCTV system will cover all areas of the premises occupied by the public under the terms of the
licence, excluding WCs and changing rooms and will cover the main entrance/s and exit/s and designated
emergency egress routes from_the premises.

The CCTV system will have sufficient storage retention capacity for a minimum of 28 days’ continuous
footage.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be
always on the premises when the premises are offering licensable activities. This staff member must be
able to show a Police Officer or Authorised Person any footage with the minimum of delay when
requested.

Storage of Alcohol

Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol. all alcohol within the trading area is to be
appropriately secured as to prevent the theft of any alcohol.

¢) Public safety

47




Structure Safety

The appropriate Health & Safety Risk Assessment will be affected in respect of the erection of any
temporary structure to be used to ensure its suitability and details will be provided to and agreed with the
Environmental Health Team before the event. Overall responsibility for such health and safety will remain
with the Premises Licence holder.

Medical / Welfare

A qualified medical company providing personnel to be employed and a medical point will be positioned
clearly on site when public are present and licensable activities are taking place.

This medical provision will be detailed within the Medical Plan and be agreed with the SAG Members
during the preceding SAG Meeting.

A procedure for dealing with unwell members of the public will be in place including those who appear to
be affected by alcohol or drugs. Staft will be appropriately trained in such procedures.

Glass

Alcohol sold from external areas or structures and facilities within the ground floor general admission
concourse areas shall be dispensed in plastic or non-glass containers.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Regulated entertainment shall only be permitted (unless otherwise authorised by the Police and Licensing
Authority) in the West Stand, in the Main Stadium outside or in such outdoor areas as may be agreed by
the Environmental Health Team.

Adequate parking and access shall be maintained.

The public-address system and external microphone/s used on match days shall only operate from
approximately 90 minutes in advance of kick off. during half time and immediately after the match.

A restrictive barrier in the form of lockable posts shall be installed and thereafter maintained across the
Thistlebarrow Road entrance to the football ground whilst licensable activities are taking place within the
external footprint of the site.

Dispersal

The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual dispersal of
customers from the stadium at the conclusion of each fixture. The policy will aim to minimise any residual
impact on the local community caused by spectators leaving the site.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that staff receive training on the policy and a record of training shall be
kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The record will be retained for a minimum of 6
months.

Noise Pollution

Bottles will not be placed in any external receptacle beyond the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol or
before 08.00 hours to minimise noise disturbance to neighbouring properties.

e) The protection of children from harm

48




Underage Sales of Alcohol

Challenge 25 shall be operated at the premises at the point of entry and at the bars where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards. such as a driving
licence or passport / Holographically marked PASS scheme identification cards. Appropriate signage
advising customers of the policy shall be prominently displayed within the premises with particular focus
on the points of sales and entry points to the site.

Staff Training

All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall receive training on the law relating to prohibited sales. the
age verification policy adopted by the premises and the conditions attaching to the premises license. A
record shall be maintained of all staff training and that record shall be signed by the person receiving the
training and the individual delivering the training. The records shall be kept for a minimum of 6 months
and made available for inspection by Dorset Police. BCP Licensing Authority. or other authorized

officers on request.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
® | have made or enclosed payment of the fee.

® | have enclosed the plan of the premises.

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable.

X

® | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated premises
supervisor. if applicable.

X X

® | understand that | must now advertise my application.

® | understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be

rejected.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING

LEVEL S ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003,
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 11).
If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date "Q‘\N \\ o ’\\\/-; LL\—

Capacity

For joint applications, signature of 2" applicant or 2™ applicant’s solicitor or other authorised
agent (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what

capacity.

Signature




Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 13)

RS Quuamemauning,

NURATY ATuw,

M Qw(\‘\\

NG R

Post town I’S"'“"‘*"W'ﬂ'\\‘\ | Postcode I'\Bv\\ XN -

Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us

address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

oo

0.

9.

10.
11.

Describe the premises. for example the type of premises. its general situation and layout and any
other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application
includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-
supplies. you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include
atent).

For example the type of activity to be authorised. if not already stated. and give relevant further
details. for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
For example (but not exclusively). where the activity will occur on additional days during the
summer months.

For example (but not exclusively). where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day
e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week
when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick “on the premises’. If
vou wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick
“0ff the premises™. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick “both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children. regardless of whether you
intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-
nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicant or their respective agent must sign

the application form.
This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

50



R 4 Litilegor=
= b-]

5]
o
n bue 3 s =
 'APPENDIX 3
2 Hasp Training 3 N /
edown AV Q o \
\ {9\" % Vo
> : The Wardrobe Genie N -
% \ e
% _ o\ N\ UV
%, £ N s
% & L\ o \/
A~ =) /
A . A /
Canna verdi * : ; v
Garden Design < WG p i
- L OV 4
AFC Bournemouth- s : = [
: Superstore Vitality Stadium,
Bournemouth Limos P 5 at Dean Court | J /
~ \ vd /
O ’ ; il .
7 \ AFC Bournemout ’
Little Pines Day:Nursery ! J //
& /
' Ouigr_liws Park Garage % ; N z y < 4
= 0, Al
4—0 R \\ /,/
“ _Kings Park, Bostombe S
] Dynomite Motorcycles /d 9 \ 7~
Shap the latest gear //" Q o o 4
Kings Park = Y . T
Cricket Ground b King's Park CarPark / Bournemouth
4. s [ Athletic Club

% a7

/,/ “'gf‘ Ol

Kings Park Cafe v % Kings Park Road )

itre - Safety.Cycle Centre x

. @ @ ¢
B ” Tizwaz Rider Training of Kings P
a0
L qs® ° Holly Tt
“\Q6 \L\“g
S
o Kings park PlayGround 9

Y
10"59%

Kings Park Leisure \
and Learning Centre
Google
G



This page is intentionally left blank

52



Appendix 4

AFC BOURNEMOUTH, DEAN COURT, KINGS PARK DRIVE,

BOURNEMOUTH, BH7 7AF

APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCES

REPRESENTATIONS FROM OTHER PERSONS

NAME & REPRESENTATION
ADDRESS
James & Carol 15t Email

Hartley

Email;

I_| I
@

Licensing no reference: 219361 AFC Bournemouth

We wish to object strongly to the above licensing application
ref:219359 on the grounds of the noise from the people

leaving the venue late at night either on foot or by the noise which
would be generated by the increase in traffic Leaving the venue.

The surrounding streets will have increased traffic and parking and
littering issues of those leaving the venue on foot.

We have already experienced the noise and traffic generated by
people leaving the venue by a previous Boxing Evening as we live on
the main route of Holdenhurst Rd/Ashley Rd from AFC Bournemouth
when our sleep was Disturbed late at night.

Please consider our objection carefully.
James and Carol Hartley
2" Email

Hello Ellie,

Our address is:
T:

Licensing no references: 219359 and 219361 AFCBournemouth

We wish to object strongly to the above licensing applications
ref:219359 and 219361 on the grounds of the noise from the people
leaving the venue late at night either on foot or or by the noise which
would be generated by the increase in traffic leaving the venue.

The surrounding streets will have increased traffic and parking and
littering issues of those leaving the venue on foot.

We have already experienced the noise and traffic generated by
people leaving the venue by a previous Boxing Evening as we live on
the main route of Holdenhurst Rd/Ashley Rd from AFC Bournemouth
when our sleep was disturbed late at night.

Please consider our objection carefully.

53




Jon Hartley

Email:

Hello,

There are already issues with parking in the surrounding areas on
match days, living as | do in a road off Ashley Road. The potential for
late night events on non-match days will increase these issues and
those of noise and traffic in what is a public park and the surrounding
areas.

| object to the applications on the grounds of the hours going into the
early morning.

Regards,
Jon Hartley

54




55



This page is intentionally left blank

56



Appendix 5

From:

To:

Cc: Ellie King; Operations

Subject: AFC Bournemouth License Applications.
Date: 16 August 2024 15:27:47
Attachments: image949398.pnq

Good afternoon James & Carol

I write to you in response to the representation that you have submitted to BCP Council in
response to the applications for licensed premises submitted by AFC Bournemouth for Matchday
and Non-Matchday licensable activities at the Vitality Stadium at Kings Park.

Firstly, thank you for bringing your concerns to my attention, as the Vice President for Business
and Hospitality for AFC Bournemouth | welcome any concerns from nearby residents and the
opportunity to address those concerns as quickly as possible. | would like to put some context to
these applications, which are intended to replace the existing premises licence which is
considered somewhat difficult to interpret following a series of amendments over the past few
years. In submitting these applications, no additional licensable activities are being sought. There
are some small amendments to the operating hours, however, these are not anticipated to
impact on the licensing objectives (prevent public nuisance, prevent crime & disorder, prevent
harm to children or risk public safety) and the intention has been to simply ensure that all public
authorities (Police, Fire Service, Ambulance Service, Local Authority) and the public can have a
clear understanding of the conditions that apply to each of the activities that occur within the
Stadium. In short, attributing bespoke conditions to each type of event will ensure that as a
business we can be confident that we are complying with the licence conditions, and secondly,
we are more accountable to the responsible authorities (some of which are listed above) to
ensure that we are consistently meeting our legal and social obligations to the community.

In advance of submitting this application to BCP Council, AFC Bournemouth engaged with the key
responsible authorities, namely Environmental Health (responsible for noise and pollution) and
Dorset Police (responsible for preventing crime & disorder and maintaining public safety) for
them to suggest any additional conditions and to ensure that, in their professional opinion, the
licensing objectives would likely be promoted by these applications. Following a period of
mediation, AFC Bournemouth were able to make additions and amendments to the applications
which led to both authorities being sufficiently satisfied with the applications resulting in no
representations against the applications being submitted by them. No other responsible
authority has submitted a representation against these applications, and | hope that you may be
able to draw sufficient confidence that these applications have withstood the scrutiny of those
professionals in their various capacities.

I am, however, keen to address the specific concerns that you have raised in your representation.
I am disappointed that you are adversely affected by the increased noise from people and traffic
leaving the stadium. This is a concern for AFC Bournemouth, and we are constantly working with
our staff, contractors, partners, and public authorities to minimise the impact of large volumes of
people leaving the Stadium following an event. To demonstrate our commitment to tackling this
issue | can advise that during our periodical Safety Advisory Group meetings with the emergency
services the issue of ensuring a safe dispersal is regularly discussed and improvements made to

57



our procedures where possible.

Additionally, the following conditions have been created and offered within the applications to
ensure that AFC Bournemouth maintain appropriate accountability for the safe dispersal of
guests —

Football Events

The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual
dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of each fixture. The policy will
aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused by spectators leaving
the site.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that staff receive training on the policy and a record of training
shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The record will be
retained for a minimum of 6 months.

Any other events
Where any regulated entertainment is held at the premises with a terminal hour of or later

than 11.00pm, the PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the
safe and responsible dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of the
event. The policy will aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused
by spectators leaving the site.

Within this policy, staff and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on
leaving of the need to do so quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the
area. Notices shall also be displayed near the exits to this effect and additionally asking
those customers with vehicles to leave by the Kings Park Drive exit.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that senior/supervising staff receive training on the policy and a
record of training shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The
record will be retained for a minimum of 6 months.

You will note that the conditions relating to dispersal are bespoke for both applications to
manage the anticipated impact of both types of events. | hope that this will reassure you that we
are not simply applying a ‘one size fits all’ approach to this issue. Once again, these conditions
have been scrutinised by Dorset Police and Environmental Health and | hope that their agreement
to these enhanced conditions will help to address the concerns that you have been experiencing
to date. We recognise and regularly exceed the lawful responsibilities expected of a Stadium
which delivers football and other events. We are very keen to minimise any adverse impact from
our activities, but | hope that you will understand that there is also a limit to what is within our
reasonable control, particularly regarding the noise and nuisance caused by guests leaving our
site. Despite our requests for guests to respect the surrounding area, regrettably the behaviour of
a minority of guests may at times fall short of our expectations.

To support the above, the Revised Guidance, issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 offers some direction to support operators and to provide reassurance to the

community. The Guidance document is available online; however, the key parts are as follows —

2.16 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave

58



their premises. Measures that may assist include:

- Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

-Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and from
the premises and in car parks

Both measures are currently in place and will be maintained in the future.

2.27 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the
building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to
smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect
the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night

The above applies to all licensed premises and whilst this is a challenge for a site of our size, we
fully endorse the need to promote this approach for all licensed premises to take all reasonable
steps to reduce the impact of our events on the community. The detailed dispersal policies that
are required as part of the new applications will ensure that the necessary measures are in place
to promote a safe and responsible dispersal of guests from the Stadium, including those that are
recommended above. You have noted that the Vitality Stadium is in a busy area of Bournemouth
and unfortunately, whilst we work closely with the Highways Department at BCP Council through
the Safety Advisory Group to minimise the disruption and impact of those arriving and leaving the
area to nearby residents, there will inevitably be increased use of the road network for short
periods both before and following an event.

Finally, | note that you refer to your experience following the previous Boxing Event. | can
reassure you that Boxing / Wrestling are not licensable activities that have been included in these
applications. AFC Bournemouth is committed to delivering the highest standard of experience for
the benefit of guests, residents and those choosing to visit the Vitality Stadium for an event.

| am grateful for you bringing your concerns to my attention. | hope that the above additional
explanation will provide you with the necessary reassurance that these applications will promote
the licensing objectives to the benefit of the local community, including yourself. If you are
reassured by the information above, | would be grateful if you could discuss any increased
reassurance with the Licensing Authority at BCP Council who can advise you further.

If you wish to discuss your concerns with me further, please do not hesitate to contact me on
01202 726381 or by email at paul.fudge@afcb.co.uk and | will be pleased to answer any further
concerns.

Kind Regards,

Paul

59



Paul Fudge
Vice President, Business and Hospitality

)

AFC Bournemouth
Vitality Stadium
Dean Court

Kings Park
Bournemouth

BH7 7AF

01202 726300
www.afcb.co.uk

This email and its contents (including any attachments) is confidential to the sender and the intended recipient(s). If you receive this email in error
please advise us by replying to the sender of this email. Please also delete and destroy this email from any systems, together with any
attachments and any copies from your system immediately. Any unauthorised storage, use, disclosure, copying, distribution or dissemination of
this email or any part of it is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. The views expressed in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily

reflect those of AFC Boumnemouth.

AFC Bournemouth values the individuality and contribution of all its staff and persons engaged in club activities and is committed to ensuring that
all are treated with dignity, respect, sensitivity and equality. The club is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and
vulnerable adults and will ensure its actions and activities reflect this.

AFC Bournemouth Limited, Registered in England No. 6632170

60



Appendix 6

From:

To:

Cc: Ellie King;

Subject: AFC Bournemouth License Applications
Date: 16 August 2024 17:19:48
Attachments: image759749.png

Good Afternoon Jon

| write to you in response to the representation that you have submitted to BCP Council in
response to the applications for licensed premises submitted by AFC Bournemouth for Matchday
and Non-Matchday licensable activities at the Vitality Stadium at Kings Park. Firstly, thank you for
bringing your concerns to my attention. As the Vice President for Business and Hospitality for
AFC Bournemouth | welcome any concerns from nearby residents and the opportunity to address
those concerns as quickly as possible. | would like to put some context to these applications,
which are intended to replace the existing premises licence which is considered somewhat
difficult to interpret following a series of amendments over the past few years. In submitting these
applications, no additional licensable activities are being sought other than Indoor Sporting
events, which will be limited and will not have any externalimpact. There are some small
amendments to the operating hours, however, these are not anticipated to impact on the
licensing objectives (prevent public nuisance, prevent crime & disorder, prevent harm to children
or risk public safety) and the intention has been to simply ensure that all public authorities
(Police, Fire Service, Ambulance Service, Local Authority) and the public can have a clear
understanding of the conditions that apply to each of the activities that occur within the Stadium.
In short, attributing bespoke conditions to each type of event will ensure that as a business we
can be confident that we are complying with the licence conditions, and secondly, we are more
accountable to the responsible authorities (some of which are listed above) to ensure that we are
consistently meeting our legal and social obligations to the community.

In advance of submitting this application to BCP Council, AFC Bournemouth engaged with the key
responsible authorities, namely Environmental Health (responsible for noise and pollution) and
Dorset Police (responsible for preventing crime & disorder and maintaining public safety) for
them to suggest any additional conditions and to ensure that, in their professional opinion, the
licensing objectives would likely be promoted by these applications. Following a period of
mediation, AFC Bournemouth were able to make additions and amendments to the applications
which led to both authorities being sufficiently satisfied with the applications resulting in no
representations against the applications being submitted by them. No other responsible
authority has submitted a representation against these applications, and | hope that you may be
able to draw sufficient confidence that these applications have withstood the scrutiny of those
professionals in their various capacities.

I am, however, keen to address the specific concerns that you have raised in your representation.
| am disappointed that you are adversely affected by the increased noise from people and traffic
leaving the stadium. This is a concern for AFC Bournemouth, and we are constantly working with
our staff, contractors, partners, and public authorities to minimise the impact of large volumes of
people leaving the Stadium following an event. To demonstrate our commitment to tackling this
issue | can advise that during our periodical Safety Advisory Group meetings with the emergency
services the issue of ensuring a safe dispersal is regularly discussed and improvements made to

61



our procedures where possible.

Additionally, the following conditions have been created and offered within the applications to
ensure that AFC Bournemouth maintain appropriate accountability for the safe dispersal of
guests —

Football Events

The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual
dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of each fixture. The policy will
aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused by spectators leaving
the site.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that staff receive training on the policy and a record of training
shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The record will be
retained for a minimum of 6 months.

Any other events
Where any regulated entertainment is held at the premises with a terminal hour of or later

than 11.00pm, the PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the
safe and responsible dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of the
event. The policy will aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused
by spectators leaving the site.

Within this policy, staff and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on
leaving of the need to do so quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the
area. Notices shall also be displayed near the exits to this effect and additionally asking
those customers with vehicles to leave by the Kings Park Drive exit.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that senior/supervising staff receive training on the policy and a
record of training shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The
record will be retained for a minimum of 6 months.

You will note that the conditions relating to dispersal are bespoke for both applications to
manage the anticipated impact of both types of events. | hope that this will reassure you that we
are not simply applying a ‘one size fits all’ approach to this issue. Once again, these conditions
have been scrutinised by Dorset Police and Environmental Health and | hope that their agreement
to these enhanced conditions will help to address the concerns that you have been experiencing
to date.

We recognise and regularly exceed the lawful responsibilities expected of a Stadium which
delivers football and other events. We are very keen to minimise any adverse impact from our
activities, but | hope that you will understand that there is also a limit to what is within our
reasonable control, particularly regarding the noise and nuisance caused by guests leaving our
site. Despite our requests for guests to respect the surrounding area, regrettably the behaviour of
a minority of guests may at times fall short of our expectations.

To support the above, the Revised Guidance, issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the

Licensing Act 2003 offers some direction to support operators and to provide reassurance to the
community. The Guidance document is available online; however, the key parts are as follows -

62



2.16 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave
their premises. Measures that may assist include:

- Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

-Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and from
the premises and in car parks

Both measures are currently in place and will be maintained in the future.

2.27 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the
building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to
smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect
the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

The above applies to all licensed premises and whilst this is a challenge for a site of our size, we
fully endorse the need to promote this approach for all licensed premises to take all reasonable
steps to reduce the impact of our events on the community. The detailed dispersal policies that
are required as part of the new applications will ensure that the necessary measures are in place
to promote a safe and responsible dispersal of guests from the Stadium, including those that are
recommended above. You have noted that the Vitality Stadium is in a busy area of Bournemouth
and unfortunately, whilst we work closely with the Highways Department at BCP Council through
the Safety Advisory Group to minimise the disruption and impact of those arriving and leaving the
area to nearby residents, there will inevitably be increased use of the road network for short
periods both before and following an event.

Finally, | note that you refer to your experience following the previous Boxing Event. | can
reassure you that Boxing / Wrestling are not licensable activities that have been included in these
applications. AFC Bournemouth is committed to delivering the highest standard of experience for
the benefit of guests, residents and those choosing to visit the Vitality Stadium for an event.

| am grateful for you bringing your concerns to my attention. | hope that the above additional
explanation will provide you with the necessary reassurance that these applications will promote
the licensing objectives to the benefit of the local community, including yourself. If you are
reassured by the information above, | would be grateful if you could discuss any increased
reassurance with the Licensing Authority at BCP Council who can advise you further.

If you wish to discuss your concerns with me further, please do not hesitate to contact me on
01202 726381 or by email at paul.fudge@afcb.co.uk and | will be pleased to answer any further

concerns.

Kind Regards,

63



Paul

Paul Fudge
Vice President, Business and Hospitality

AFC Bournemouth
Vitality Stadium
Dean Court

Kings Park
Bournemouth

BH7 7AF

www.afcb.co.uk

This email and its contents (including any attachments) is confidential to the sender and the intended recipient(s). If you receive this email in error
please advise us by replying to the sender of this email. Please also delete and destroy this email from any systems, together with any
attachments and any copies from your system immediately. Any unauthorised storage, use, disclosure, copying, distribution or dissemination of
this email or any part of it is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. The views expressed in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily
reflect those of AFC Bournemouth.

AFC Bournemouth values the individuality and contribution of all its staff and persons engaged in club activities and is committed to ensuring that
all are treated with dignity, respect, sensitivity and equality. The club is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and
vulnerable adults and will ensure its actions and activities reflect this.

AFC Bournemouth Limited, Registered in England No. 6632170

64



Agenda ltem 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Application for a Premises Licence at AFC Bournemouth -
Non- Match Days

Meeting date 2 September 2024

Status Public Report

Executive summary Mr Paul Fudge has made an application on behalf of AFC
Bournemouth Ltd for 2 new premises licences at Vitality Stadium,
Dean Court, Kings Park, Bournemouth.

The venue currently benefits from one premises licence covering
all licensable activity at the premises. AFC Bournemouth Ltd have
made the decision to apply for 2 premises licences, one to cover
match day activities and one to cover non match day activities.

These applications have been made to enable the existing licence
to be split between match day events and non-match day
entertainment events and reflect the licensable activity, hours and
conditions that are appropriate for each type of event.

The Licensing Authority has received representations from 2 other
persons in respect of each of the applications on the grounds that
to grant the application would undermine the prevention of public
nuisance licensing objective. The representations are identical for
each application. No representations have been made by a
Responsible Authority.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

a) Grant the application for a premises licence as made;
b) Refuse the application for a premises licence;
c) Grant the premises licence subject to additional conditions.

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to make a
decision at the end of the hearing after all relevant parties
have been given the opportunityto speak. Members must give
full reasons for their decision.

Reason for The Licensing Authority may only consider aspects relevant to the
recommendations application that have been raised in representation.

Where representations have been received in relation to an

65




application by a responsible authority or any other person, and the
concerns have not been resolved through mediation between all
parties, the Scheme of Delegation set out in the Council’s
Constitution states that these applications should be dealt with by
the Licensing Sub-Committee.

66




Portfolio Holder(s):

Services.

ClIr Kieron Wilson — Portfolio Holder for Housing, and Regulatory

Corporate Director

Jillian Kay — Corporate Director for Wellbeing

Report Authors

Ellie King — Licensing Officer

Wards

Littledown & Iford:;

Classification

For Decision

Background

1. Application was made by Mr Paul Fudge on behalf of AFC Bournemouth Ltd on 15
July 2024 for 2 premises licences. As set out in the executive summary above these
applications have been made to split the existing licence to cover match day and
non-match day activities.

2. The table below sets out the differences between the existing licence and the
applications being considered.

Licensable activity | Existing Licence — | Match day Non-Match Day
All events application application
Films (Indoors and | Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
Outdoors) 10:00 to 01:00 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun

10:00 to 00:00

09:00 to 00:00

Indoor Sporting Not included on Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
Events this licence 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat
09:00 to 01:30
Sun
09:00 to 00:00
Live Music Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
(Indoors and 10:00 to 01:00 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
Outdoors) Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun
10:00 to 00:00 09:00 to 00:00
Recorded Music Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur

(Indoors and

10:00 to 01:00

09:30 to 23:00

09:00 to 01:00

67




Outdoors) Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun
10:00 to 00:00 09:00 to 00:00
Performances of Mon — Thur Mon-Sun Mon — Thur
Dance 10:00 to 01:00 09:30 to 23:00 09:00 to 01:00
(Indoors and Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
Outdoors) 10:00 to 01:30 09:00 to 01:30
Sun Sun

10:00 to 00:00

09:00 to 00:00

Activity like Music | Mon — Thur Not included on Not included on
and Dance 10:00 to 01:00 this application this application
Fri — Sat
(Indoors and 10:00 to 01:30
Outdoors) Sun
10:00 to 00:00
Late Night Mon — Thur Not included on Mon — Thur
Refreshment 23:00 to 01:30 this application 23:00 to 01:30
Fri — Sat Fri — Sat
(Indoors and 23:00 to 02:00 23:00 to 02:00
Outdoors) Sun Sun

23:00 to 00:00

23:00 to 00:00

Supply of Alcohol
(On and Off sales)

Mon — Thur
10:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat
10:00 to 01:30
Sun

10:00 to 00:00

Mon-Sun
09:30 to 23:00

Mon — Thur
09:00 to 01:00
Fri — Sat
09:00 to 01:30
Sun

09:00 to 00:00

3. The licence conditions attached to each licence application have also been

amended.

4. A copy of the existing licence is attached at appendix 1

5. A copy of the application for non-matchday events is attached at appendix 2

6. A location plan is attached at appendix 3.

Consultation

7. The applications were served on all responsible authorities. The applicant
confirmed that the statutory notices were displayed on site and published in the local

newspaper.

8. The applications prompted representations from 2 other persons under the
prevention of public nuisance Licensing objective.

9. A copy of the representations received is attached at appendix 4.

68




10. Mr Fudge has contacted the other persons who have made representation against
the applications with a view to mediation, however at the time of preparing this
report mediation has not been successful and the representations stand.

11. Copies of the emails sent from Mr Fudge to the other persons are attached at
appendix 5 and 6.

12. There are no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities.

Options Appraisal
13. Before making a decision, Members are asked to consider the following matters:
e The representations made by the 2 other persons
e The relevant licensing objectives, namely the prevention of public nuisance

e The Licensing Act 2003, appropriate Regulations, Statutory Revised
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (December
2023) and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy

Summary of financial implications

14. An appeal may be made against the decision of the Sub-Committee by the applicant
or any party making representation to the Magistrates’ Court which could have a
financial impact on the Council.

Summary of legal implications

15. You mustengage legal services to complete/agree this section of the report as early
as possible during the drafting stage. This should include the Council’s legal powers
to make and implement the decision and a summary of the legal advice taken,
including reference to any legal risks associated with it and corresponding steps
taken / to be taken to mitigate those risks.]

Summary of human resources implications

16. There are no human resources implications.

Summary of sustainability impact

17. There are no sustainability impact implications.

Summary of public health implications

18. There are no public health implications.

Summary of equality implications

19. There are no equality implications.

Summary of risk assessment

20. There are no risk assessment implications

Background papers

BCP Council — Statement of Licensing Policy

69



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s21122/Statement%200f%20Licensing
%20Policy.pdf
Hearing Regulations

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/made

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (December
2023)

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
(publishing.service.gov.uk)

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Existing AFC Bournemouth Licence

Appendix 2 - Application Form - Non - Matchday Events
Appendix 3 - Location Plan

Appendix 4 - Copy of representations

Appendix 5 - Applicant response to James and Carol Hartley
Appendix 6 - Applicant response to Jon Hartley

70


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s21122/Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s21122/Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf

Licensing Team Append|x 1 BCP

BCP Council Civic Centre Council
Bourne Avenue
Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Premises Licence
Part A

Premises licence number: BH149278

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

AFC Bournemouth Dean Court Kings Park Drive

Post town: Bournemouth | Post Code: BH7 7AF

Telephone number:

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Films

Live Music

Recorded Music
Performances of Dance
Activity like Music / Dance
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Films

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00
Exhibition of films will take place indoors and outdoors
Live Music

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00
Performance of live music will take place indoors and outdoors
Recorded Music

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00
Playing of recorded music will take place indoors and outdoors
Performances of Dance
Monday - 10:00 to 01:00
Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00
Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00
Friday - 10:00 to 01:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

71



Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Performance of dance will take place indoors and outdoors

Activity like Music / Dance

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday - 10:00 to 01:30

Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Entertainment will take place indoors and outdoors of anything of a similar description that falls within
live music, recorded music and performance of dance

Late Night Refreshment

Monday - 23:00 to 01:30

Tuesday - 23:00 to 01:30

Wednesday - 23:00 to 01:30

Thursday - 23:00 to 01:30

Friday - 23:00 to 02:00

Saturday - 23:00 to 02:00

Sunday - 23:00 to 00:30

Provision of late-night refreshments will take place indoors and outdoors

Supply of Alcohol

Monday - 10:00 to 01:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 01:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday - 10:00 to 01:30

Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Non-Standard timings for all above licensable activities

An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s,
St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s and St David’s days; 10-14 December and Boxing Day and from terminal
hour on New Year’s Eve to commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to terminal
hour on change from GMT to BST.

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday - 07:00 to 01:30

Tuesday - 07:00 to 01:30

Wednesday - 07:00 to 01:30

Thursday - 07:00 to 01:30

Friday - 07:00 to 02:00

Saturday - 07:00 to 02:00

Sunday - 07:00 to 00:30

Non-standard timings

An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s,
St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s and St David’s days; 10-14 December and Boxing Day and from terminal
hour on New Year’s Eve to commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to terminal
hour on change from GMT to BST.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies:

Alcohol will be consumed on and off the premises

72




Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:

Vitality Stadium

AFC Bournemouth Limited
Dean Court

Kings Park

Bournemouth

BH7 7AF

| el I

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable):

06632170

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Mr Paul Andrew Fudge

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Bournemouth Borough Council

73



Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

Mandatory Conditions (Sections 19,20,21 LA 2003)

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

There shall be no sale or supply of alcohol when there is no designated premises supervisor in
respect of this premises licence or at a time when the said premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or when his/her licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

Any person used to carry out a security activity as required under conditions 2.2.3, 2.6.1, 2.11, 2.25,
2.26 and 2.34 below must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Admission of children (under the age of 18) to any exhibition of films must be restricted in
accordance with the film classification body designated as the authority under Section 4 of the
Video Recordings Act 1984.

Where the film classification is not specified, or the relevant licensing authority has notified the
premises licence holder under Section 20 (3)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003, the admission of children
must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the Licensing Authority.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014

1.6.

1.7.

1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange
or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2. In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —

(@) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on
the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised
to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti- social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

74



1.8.

1.9.

(@)
(b)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

a holographic mark, or

an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that -

(@)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures—

beer or cider: Yz pint;

gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014

1.10.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(@)  “duty”is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+(DxV)
Where —

P is the permitted price,

D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

75



(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest
penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph
2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

General (External Areas)

2.1.

2.2.

With the exception of the areas edged blue on the licence plans, use of temporary facilities in the
external area will be subject to agreement with the Licensing Authority, Police and Environmental
Health Team at least 21 days before the event (or 28 days if a major event) as to the use of the
area, size, layout including barriers, security, capacity, and means of control (including any
necessary noise controls).

2.1.1 A Noise Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Environmental Health team at least 21 days prior to the event or 28 days if a major event.

2.1.2 A ‘major event’ is one where capacity is expected to exceed 500.

The use of the external areas edged blue on the licence plans shall be subject to the following
additional conditions:-

2.2.1 The area shall be physically demarked by barriers as indicated on the attached plan and
covered by CCTV which shall be operational (subject to unforeseen fault) at all times the area
is open to the public.

2.2.2 Only home fans shall be admitted to the area on production of the match ticket.

2.2.3 Whilst the area is available to the public SIA licensed security personnel wearing high visibility
top shall be deployed as follows: two at the entrance to the area and one at the exit gate.

2.2.4 All drinks must be served in plastic bottles or drinking vessels which cannot be removed from
the area.

76



2.2.5 The bar shall close, and the barriers shall be removed no later than 15 minutes before kick-
off, and the structure housing the bar shall be secured.

2.2.6 A clicker or similar device shall be used to ensure that the agreed maximum capacity of the
area is not exceeded.

2.2.7 No provision of regulated entertainment shall be permitted in this area.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

2.3.

24.

2.5.

2.6.1

The CCTV system shall remain installed. CCTV recordings/images shall be retained for at least a
calendar month and these shall be made available to the Police on request (subject to the Data
Protection Act 1998).

The operators shall attend such Safety Advisory Group (SAG) meetings as the appropriate
authorities may require in respect of designated sporting events, and shall implement the controls
agreed at such meetings/with the SAG members.

On match days and when an event involving musical regulated entertainment is held at the
premises with a terminal hour of or later than midnight, the operators shall implement the Dispersal
Policy agreed with the Police and Environmental Health team.

Names and badge numbers of all SIA licensed security personnel to be provided by promoters will
be forwarded to the Police at least 7 days in advance of an event with external regulated
entertainment.

Designated Sporting Events (Match days)

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

The operator shall use best practicable means to ensure that those attending designated sporting
events (match days) do not commit an offence under the Sporting Events (Control of Alcohol etc)
Act 1985 whilst they are on the licensed premises.

On match days, the sale and supply of alcohol shall be limited as set out below or for any longer
hours that may be agreed with the Police and Licensing authority :

2.7.1. Stand facilities in view of the playing area - no alcohol shall be sold during the restricted
period (15 minutes before the start of the event to 15 minutes after the end of the event).

On match days, any area from which the playing area may be viewed at any time during the
restricted period will be "prohibited areas". In the event that alcohol is sold in any area on the
concourse which has direct access to any prohibited area signage must be clearly displayed
advising of this prohibition. Staff shall regularly check areas where alcohol is being supplied during
the restricted period to prevent alcohol being taken into the prohibited areas.

Alcohol sold from structures and facilities on the ground floor concourses shall be dispensed in
plastic or waxed paper containers.

Security personnel (licensed with the SIA where necessary) shall be provided and deployed as
agreed at SAG meetings.

A Personal Licence holder (or such other person agreed by the Police) whose details shall be made
known to relevant SAG members shall be on duty during the restricted period.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

2.12.

2.13.

Regulated entertainment shall only be permitted (unless otherwise authorised by the Police and
Licensing Authority) in the West Stand, in the Main Stadium outside or in such outdoor areas as
may be agreed by the Environmental Health Team.

Adequate parking and access shall be maintained.

77



2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

The public-address system and external microphone/s used on match days shall only operate from
approximately 1 hour before kick off, during half time and immediately after the match.

A restrictive barrier in the form of lockable posts shall be installed and thereafter maintained across
the Thistlebarrow Road entrance to the football ground.

Access and egress through the restrictive barrier shall only be available on match days up to 2
hours after the end of a match and at any time for use by emergency vehicles.

Prominent notices shall be displayed within the premises directing persons to exit towards Kings
Park Drive and to respect the residential nature of the area and to leave the area quickly and quietly.

Indoor Requlated Entertainment

The following steps shall be implemented when amplified musical regulated entertainment (the event) is
scheduled to be provided after 22:59:

2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

2.23.

2.24.

2.25.

Any doors or windows from the room where the event is being held which open directly to the
outside shall be kept closed, except to allow people to enter and leave.

Air circulation or conditioning shall be provided in such rooms.

A member of staff shall have the responsibility of monitoring noise levels from the event at the
boundaries near neighbouring noise sensitive premises at least hourly. If music noise from the
event can be heard, immediate steps shall be taken to turn the music down to an acceptable level.

Residents of neighbouring noise sensitive premises shall be given a telephone contact number
which shall ensure that they can speak to a responsible member of management and/or staff if they
have any complaints. Any such complaints received shall be investigated immediately and
appropriate remedial action taken if and as necessary.

A log shall be maintained of monitoring results and any complaints, and shall be produced on
request to a Police or Local Authority authorised officer.

Performers shall be advised of the need to keep music output at acceptable levels and to respond
immediately to any request from staff to reduce the volume.

Staff and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on leaving of the need to do so
quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the area. Notices shall also be displayed
near the exits to this effect and additionally asking those customers with vehicles to leave by the
Kings Park Drive exit.

A risk assessment shall be affected if the event proposes to have the entertainment until the
terminal hour permitted by the Licence and the appropriate number of door supervisors shall be
engaged. Their responsibilities shall include monitoring the customers as they leave the premises
and encouraging them to leave the premises and the area quickly and quietly. Details of any
customer unwilling to respond to such requests shall be taken and given to management with a
view to a future bar.

Qutdoor Requlated Entertainment

2.26.

2.27.

Entertainment shall only be permitted in the area, for the event and during the daylight hours (not
starting prior to 10:00 nor ending after 22:00) agreed with the Environmental Health team, the
Licensing Authority and the Police.

Unless agreed with the Environmental Health team, the Licensing Authority and the Police (with
the exception of sporting events):

2.27.1 There shall be no amplification of the musical regulated entertainment.

78



2.28.

2.27.2 Such entertainment shall be limited to a maximum duration of 4 hours on no more than 15
days in each calendar year on dates agreed with the Environmental Health team.

2.27.3 No outside entertainment shall be permitted until the plan relating to outside entertainment
has been submitted to and agreed by the Environmental Health team at least 21 days prior
to the (first) event. The said Plan shall be adhered to at all times during outside
entertainment.

If the outside entertainment for which permission is sought is of the nature of an open-air concert,
and/or involves amplified musical regulated entertainment (with the exception of sporting events
held in the stadium), a noise assessment to determine the suitability of the stadium for the same
shall be undertaken in relation to residential properties, and shall accompany the request for
agreement for such an event. If appropriate, that assessment shall specifically refer to the Noise
Council's Code of Practice on the Control of Noise from Concerts or any such Code that may have
superseded the same.

Protection of Children from Harm

2.29.

2.30.

Bar staff shall be trained to prevent underage sales, which shall include a requirement to request
identification from any persons who look under 21 years before they are sold alcohol.

2.29.1 The only forms of ID that are acceptable shall be those required by mandatory condition.

2.29.2 Signs shall be displayed that clearly state the forms of ID that shall be required and
accepted.

When operating an under 18 event, a risk assessment shall be effected and made available to a
Police officer on request. The assessment shall take account of, amongst other things, the number
and deployment of staff including security personnel, and the measures to be put into place to
prevent alcohol being brought onto site or available for under 18s on site.

Public Safety

2.31.

The appropriate Health & Safety Risk Assessment will be effected in respect of the erection of any
temporary structure to be used to ensure its suitability and details will be provided to and agreed
with the Environmental Health Team before the event. Overall responsibility for such health and
safety will remain with the Premises Licence holder.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

None

Annex 4 — Plans

This licence is issued in accordance with the following plans —

Perimeter and South Stand site plans M205631 dated 28.04.23

Layout plans dated 04 Feb 2016, 05 Feb 2016 and 14 Jan 2017 M149278 A-D / M149278 E- E3 and
M154770 A.

79



ALt 816nD

TuELE HLEEW

REET £1aHD

Perimeter Site Plan

M205631 dated 28.04.23

80



i i E

NG E R R S R e e e
LS R e

SRR I ! _m H
et s et fllg w !
w i -m il Bl
T = — R e e —
)3 e S WO RN . i SRR SO

L. Fi [

R or) i

SO

N
u#w -

%

s
- &
-;fa—

— s

; | ! R D i :
| B Tl I ™
q " , s
£ f h i =
g | H P
=L, o 5 L4 3 | S = 0,
! ] H] / B vd
1 \, \\
£ .k i | e S 1 _H&..
| { :
R | L

i

Y,

et

L M
LI |
1 N

_ | .

| - el

| =
o

T
. g
i -

| o, S RPN LR * 5 ;
L b | e P DR, S [ e
e I s e e e . o Wl
e ——— 1 ./ |3
[ s liGail i
7 RTCRLE T i i
[P ——

81

M205631 dated 28.04.23

South Stand



U] 00| Puncus puky; a3

Our ref: LEAPYV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRFO1191

82



22t T bh( W oN 434
03A0YddY

202 824 5
NOILO3S INISKION
TIINNMO HONCHOE HLNCINANGNOE

=

Sl

YnLE. Vhadsite
U Param O

E;
© e on

Drasixgtin

Oz

0% o
e
Surmer

HORTH STARIYFLOOR FLA

GINEER 2275

o
100 141}

T
[ it

Geouealis Survayors
ART BOURKENOUTH
SCLIBNS ST
PR
BOLRNCMOUTH
TGS Shent taty

i

AN

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRF01191

Ground Floor Plan

North Stand

83

—

0 susDaNded | fales caling

~Cailng buights.

07 Jsus” - Cailng haights

Go)
g

B

A

it




South Stand

Ground Floor Plan

UG08 -Shea1 ¢}

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRF01191

Annotations

el

i - e raghts
EF T s

ta susparded ! felse celig

CETon. SeuSoe.

® (Al FowT

e
@ ¢ ¥

A

s e
——

e = e
———— — = Fee
pie —] ™~ -|_I|L oy =
pe— 7 v .
e T pe—
= =, ——
——— = varsemn) ————
—— e P

BOLRNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING SECTION

b5 FEB 2018

APPROVED
REF. No. M 14.9 > 330

84




o of e SeuSal.
& Caz (4

6 LT CPesu A

e rth.oef B

{ A4

BOURNEMOUTH BORGUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING SECTION -

L5 Fea g

APPROVED
REF. No. M lag29%,, L

S
3
i
o
o
a
@
S
&
3
a
g
=]
'_U
=
g

s ST .
YR REEBROLTS )
TR

ighgtbbge o g ‘
¥

LT HETEH
i ?‘%3%5515 |

e i

85

Our ref: LEAPv1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRF01191



¥y o

LE3

:

X e Oicod

LA

P ey Lo

® don oo

SemSol

West Stand First Floor Plan

BOURNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNGIL
LIGENSING SECTION

(5 Ft3 /06

APPROVED
REF. No. M 1492 3%,

149278: MRFO1191

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.:

86



1
i

}f]] il

i

|

RN IRE NN I

West Stand Second Floor Plan

BOURNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REF. No. M/ 9238,

b L Uiy [
&
PR TR
Liwey "1\{_1

“rvvam )

Our ref: LEAPV1: Misc. Act.: 149278: MRFO1191

87




Premises Licence
Part B
Premises licence number: BH149278

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

AFC Bournemouth Dean Court Kings Park Drive

Post town: Bournemouth | Post Code: BH7 7AF

Telephone number:

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Activity like Music / Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply
of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Films (Indoors and Outdoors) Late Night Refreshment (Indoors and Outdoors)

Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 Monday to Thursday - 23:00 to 01:30

Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 Friday and Saturday - 23:00 to 02:00

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00 Sunday - 23:00 to 00:30

Live Music (Indoors and Outdoors) Supply of Alcohol

Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00 Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Recorded Music (Indoors and Outdoors) Non-Standard timings for all above licensable activities
Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to
Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s, St Patrick’s, St
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00 Andrew’s and St David’'s days; 10-14 December and Boxing
Performances of Dance (Indoors and Outdoors) Day and from terminal hour on New Year's Eve to
Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00 commencement of hours on New Year's Day. An additional
Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30 hour to terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Activity like Music / Dance (Indoors and Outdoors)

Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 01:00

Friday and Saturday - 10:00 to 01:30

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Thursday 07:00 to 01:30, Friday and Saturday - 07:00 to 02:00, Sunday - 07:00 to 00:30
Non-standard timings:

An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive) St Valentine’s, St George’s, St Patrick’s, St
Andrew’s and St David’s days; 10-14 December and Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to
commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies:

Alcohol will be consumed on and off the premises

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence:

Vitality Stadium, AFC Bournemouth Limited, Dean Court, , Kings Park, Bournemouth, BH7 7AF

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable):

06632170

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Mr Paul Andrew Fudge

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

Conditions 1.4 and 1.5

Issued: 5 February 2016 Mrs Nananka Randle
Revised: 2 August 2023 (Minor Variation) Licensing Manager

88




APPENDIX 3

BCP Council

Application for a premises licence to be granted
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Belore completing this form. please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 1f you are completing
this form by hand. please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside
ihe boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Ewe ARG BONMENAUITITL e s somsossasssmsasSonmass e anet Sesspim fedsescansn:
(Insert namels) of applicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in

Part 1 below (the premises) and l/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing

authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

>art 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or. if none. ordnance survey map reference or description

Vitality Stadium
Dean Court
Kings Park

Post town Bournemouth Postcode BH7 7AF

Telephone number at premises (if any) _

e

65

‘N

,000

Non-domestic rateable value of premises

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether vou are applyving for a premises licence as
Please tick as appropriate
a) an individual or individuals * []  please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *
i.  asalimited company please complete section (B)
ii. asapartnership please complete section (B)
ili.  as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)

iv.  other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

I I B

¢) arecognised club please complete section (B)

89




h)

a charity
the proprietor of an educational establishment
a health service body

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the Care
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an independent
hospital in Wales

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part |
of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the

meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in

England

the chief officer of police of a police force in England
and Wales

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

O 0O0dnO

please complete section (B)

]

please complete section (B)

[] please complete section (B)

*1f vou are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

Please tick ves

[ am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises for
licensable activities: or

I am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function or

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr

0 wMrs [ Miss [] Ms []

Other Title (for
example. Rev)

Surname

First names

[ am 18 vears old or over

(1  Please tick yes

Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

90

10




SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

e ; Other Title (for
Mr [] Mrs [ ] Miss [ ] Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
I am 18 years old or over []  Please tick yes

Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body
corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
AFC Bournemouth Ltd.

Address

Vitality Stadium
Dean Court
Kings Park
Bournemouth

Registered number (where applicable)

06632170

Description of applicant (for example. partnership. company. unincorporated association etc.)

Limited Company

i‘eleihone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

91




Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do vou want the premises licence to start? As soon as possible
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period. when do you DD MM YYYY
want it to end? r T T 1T 1 111

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note )

This Premises Licence is intended to be utilised when delivering licensable activities as part of a non-
matchday event at the stadium.

Alongside a separate Premises Licence intended to meet the requirements for Football events at this
stadium. this Premises Licence is intended to replace Premises Licence No. BH149278 which will be
surrendered upon grant of the two replacement licences. No additional provision is being sought through
this application process.

It is anticipated that two separate Premises Licences to meet the different purposes of the stadium and
associated hospitality spaces will ensure that appropriate conditions can be attributed for each bespoke
type of event, whether a football or corporate / hospitality event.

I 3.000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time. ’7” 999
please state the number expected to attend. .

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick any that

Provision of regulated entertainment apply

a)  plays (if ticking yes. fill in box A)

by  films (if ticking ves. fill in box B)

¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking ves. fill in box C)

d)  boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking ves. fill in box D)
e)  live music (if ticking ves, fill in box E)

f)  recorded music (if ticking ves. fill in box F)

X X X O K X O

g)  performances of dance (if ticking ves. fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e). () or (g)
(if ticking ves. fill in box H)

L

h)

92




Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes. fill in box I)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking ves. fill in box J) X

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

B

Films Will the performance of live music take place

Standard davs and timings | indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please [ndoors ]

(please read guidance note | read guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors

Dayv Start Finish Both X

Mon 0900 0100 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 10900 | 0100

Wed 0900 0100 State any seasonal variations for the films (please read guidance note 4)

Thur 10900 | 0100

Fri 0900 0130 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
films at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 3)

Sat C 3

oo g An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)

St Valentine’s, St George’s, St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s. St David’s days.
Christmas Eve, Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to

Sun 0900 0000 commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to

terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

93




C

Indoor Sporting Events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

6)

Day Start Finish

Mon 1 0900 | 0100

Tue 10900 | 0100

Wed 0900 0100 State any seasonal variations for the indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur 1 0900 | 0100

Fri 0900 0130 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)

Sat 3 i : ; . ’

0900 O]J_(_)___ An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)

St Valentine's, St George's, St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s, St David’s days.
Christmas Eve. Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to

Sun 0900 commencement of hours on New Year's Day. An additional hour to

terminal hour on change trom GMT to BST.

94




Live music Will the performance of live music take place

Standard days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please Indoors L]

(please read guidance note | read guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both X

Mon 0900 0100 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 10900 | 0100

Wed 0900 0100 State anv seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please
read guidance note 4)

Thur 10900 {0100

Fri 0900 0130 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)

Sat C 3 s ! ! ; 3

0300 0130 An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)

St Valentine’s. St George’s. St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s, St David’s days,
Christmas Eve., Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to

Sun 0000 commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to

0900

terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

95




Recorded music

Will the plaving of recorded music take place

Standard days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please Indoors [
(please read guidance note | read guidance note 2)
6) Outdoors [l
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 0900 0100 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue 10900 {0100
Wed 0900 0100 State any seasonal variations for the plaving of recorded musice (please
read guidance note 4)
Thur 10900 | 0100
Fri 0900 0130 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
- plaving of recorded music at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)
Sat 3 e : ; ;
6290 P30 An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)
St Valentine's, St George's, St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s, St David’s days.
Christmas Eve. Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year's Eve to
Sun 0000 commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to

0900

terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

96




G

Performances of dance

Will the performance of dance take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors L]

(please read guidance note | guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors ]

Day Start Finish Both X

Mon 0900 0100 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 10900 | 0100

Wed 0900 0100 State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur 0900 0100

Fri 0900 0130 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 3)

Sat 3 s : . . .

0900 o An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)

St Valentine’s. St George's, St Patrick’s. St Andrew’s, St David’s days.
Christmas Eve. Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to

Sun 0900 0000 commencement of hours on New Year’s Day. An additional hour to

terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

97




Late Night Refreshment

Will the late night refreshment take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors ]

(please read guidance note | guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors []

Day Start Finish Both X

Mon 2300 0130 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue | 2300 | 0130

Wed 2300 0130 State any seasonal variations for the late night refreshment (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur | 2300 | 0130

Fri 2300 0200 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for late
nicht refreshment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 35)

Sat 23 2 . . L. . :

2300 0200 An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)

St Valentine’s. St George's, St Patrick’s. St Andrew’s. St David’s days.
Christmas Eve. Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year's Eve to

Sun 2300 commencement of hours on New Year's Day. An additional hour to

0030

terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

98




Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption — On the
Standard days and timings | please tick (please read guidance note 7) premises O
(please read guidance note
6) Off the ]
premises
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 0900 0100 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
~~~~~~ guidance note 4)
Tue | 0000 | 0100
Wed 1 0900 | 0100
Thur 0900 0100 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the

------------------------------------ supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 3)

| 09 3 » : i . :
\ 0800 (_)AI 20 An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)
! St Valentine's. St George’s. St Patrick’s. St Andrew’s, St David’s days.

Christmas Eve, Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to
Sat | 0900 0130 commencement of hours on New Year's Day. An additional hour to
_______________________________ terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.

Sun 0900 0000

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated
premises supervisor:

Name

Postcode | -

Personal licence number (if known)

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

99



K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read

guidance note 8).

No such licensable activities are required.

Hours premises are open
to the public
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

State anv seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4)

6)
Day Start Finish
Mon | 0700 | 0200
Tue 10700 | 0200
Wed 10700 | 0200
Non standard timings. Where vou intend the premises to be open to the
— _ public at different times from those listed in the column on the left,
Thur 0700 0200 please list (please read guidance note 3)
An additional hour on Bank holiday weekends (Friday to Monday inclusive)
Fri 0700 0200 St Valentine’s. St George's. St Patrick’s, St Andrew’s. St David’s days.
Christmas Eve. Boxing Day and from terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to
commencement of hours on New Year's Day. An additional hour to
S terminal hour on change from GMT to BST.
Sat 0700 0200 -
Sun | 0700 | 0200

100




M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 9)

All relevant Mandatory Conditions will apply to this Application.

Safetv Advisorv Group (SAG)

A SAG shall be convened for any event that is anticipated to host 5.000 or more attendees. including staff
or such an event that the responsible authorities reasonably deem appropriate for a SAG. and shall
implement the controls agreed at such meetings/with the SAG members.

In respect of any such event. there will be liaison with the Police and Licensing Authority concerning any
necessary additional provision of CCTV coverage. anti-terrorism protocols, security arrangements
(including the provision of SIA licensed security personnel) and entrance and exit arrangements. and
agreed provisions will be in place throughout the event.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

SIA Security

The holder of the licence shall undertake a risk assessment regarding the deployment of SIA Door
Supervisors at different times of the day and on different days of the event to determine the appropriate
number of SIA staff are deployed on those days and/or at any other time(s) and to then implement the
outcome of the risk assessment. which shall include any advice and guidance from Dorset Police and other
Responsible Authorities.

A copy of the risk assessment should be made available to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority
or Dorset Police upon request and for a period of up to 6 months.

The Premises Licence Holder (PLH)/Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) will ensure that a written
record of all SIA staff deploved to the event is maintained on the premises and will be available for
inspection by Dorset Police or Authorised Persons for a period of 6 months following any event.

The Premises Licence holder will ensure that all SIA staff are clearly identifiable to the public, through
wearing high-visibility outer garments or other uniform. which will be determined by the PLH as part of

the Risk Assessment.

Incident Log / Refusal Log

All bars will have a Refusal Record which will be available on request to any authorised authority.
including Dorset Police and BCP Licensing Authority officers. This record will include reasons for refusal
and what action was taken. This record will be retained by the Premises Licence Holder for a minimum
period of 6 months.

An Incident Record shall be kept and maintained at the premises whilst licensable activities are taking
place. The log should include the date and time of the incident and the name of the staft and other
individuals involved (where known). The record will be made available on request to an authorised officer
of BCP Council or Dorset Police and will record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the site staft

101




(b) all ejections of patrons from the site

(c) any complaints received

(d) any incidents of disorder known to the staff or security

(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons at the entrance or elsewhere within the site
(f) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Personal Licence Holder

There shall always be a Personal Licence Holder (PLH) on duty on the premises when the premises are
providing licensable activities. The DPS will maintain a record of all PLH"s throughout each event and
this record will be retained by the Premises Licence Holder for a minimum of 6 months.

CCTV

A Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) system shall always be operational at the premises when licensable
activities are being carried out and at any other times when members of the public associated with the

event are present on the premises.

The CCTV system will cover all areas of the premises occupied by the public under the terms of the
licence, excluding WCs and changing rooms. The coverage will include the main entrances and exits and
designated emergency egress routes from_the premises.

The CCTV system will have sufficient storage retention capacity for a minimum of 28 days” continuous
footage.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be

always on the premises when the premises are offering licensable activities. This staff member must be
able to produce footage to a Police Officer or authorised person with the minimum delay when requested.

Storage of Alcohol

Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol, all alcohol within the trading area is to be
appropriately secured as to prevent the theft of any alcohol.

102




¢) Public safety

Structure Safety

The appropriate Health & Safety Risk Assessment will be affected in respect of the erection of any
temporary structure to be used to ensure its suitability and details will be provided to and agreed with the
Environmental Health Team before the event. Overall responsibility for such health and satety will remain
with the Premises Licence holder.

Medical / Welfare

A currently qualified first aider must be always employed on the premises when the premises are open to
the public. The venue will also provide first aid facilities commensurate with the type of event and
customers expected.

A procedure for dealing with unwell members of the public will be in place including those who appear to
be affected by alcohol or drugs. Staft will be appropriately trained in such procedures.

Glass

Plastic or toughened polycarbonate (or similar) glasses/bottles will be used in all outdoor areas.
The collection of glass and bottles shall be undertaken at regular intervals from the internal areas.

Litter

The PLH/DPS will ensure that litter arising from people using the premises is cleared away daily and that
promotional materials such as flvers do not create litter.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

103




Regulated entertainment shall only be permitted (unless otherwise authorised by the Police and Licensing
Authority) in the West Stand. in the Main Stadium outside or in such outdoor areas as may be agreed by
the Environmental Health Team.

Adequate parking and access shall be maintained for the event alongside appropriate signposting for public
transport commensurate to the scale and nature of the event.

The public-address system and external microphone/s used during the event shall only operate for the
duration of the operating hours for the premises.

The following steps shall be implemented for indoor amplified musical regulated entertainment taking
place beyond 2300hrs:

- Any doors or windows from the room where the event is being held which open directly to the
outside shall be kept closed. except to allow people to enter and leave.

- Air circulation or conditioning shall be provided in such rooms.

- Residents of neighbouring noise sensitive premises shall be given a telephone contact number
which shall ensure that they can speak to a responsible member of management and/or staff if they
have any complaints. Any such complaints received shall be investigated immediately and
appropriate remedial action taken if and as necessary.

- A log shall be maintained of monitoring results and any complaints and shall be produced on
request to a Police or Local Authority authorised officer.

- Performers shall be advised of the need to keep music output at required levels and to respond
immediately to any request from staff to reduce the volume.

Outdoor entertainment shall only be permitted during daylight hours (not starting prior to 10:00 nor
ending after 23:00) unless agreed with the Environmental Health team, the Licensing Authority and the
Police.

Noise from live/recorded music event shall not exceed 75 dBA measured at 1 metre from the fagade of the
closest noise sensitive receptor. This location to be determined in agreement with the Environmental
Health team prior to the event.

Outdoor entertainment shall be limited to a maximum duration of 8 hours on no more than 15 days in each
calendar vear.

Notification of any outdoor entertainment with an anticipated public audience of greater than 5,000 shall
be made to the Environmental Health team and Dorset Police at least 21 days prior to the event.

No outside entertainment with an anticipated audience greater than 5.000 shall be permitted until the
Noise Management Plan relating to outside entertainment has been submitted to and agreed by the
Environmental Health team.

[f the outside entertainment for which permission is sought is of the nature of an open-air concert. and/or
involves amplified musical regulated entertainment. a noise assessment to determine the suitability of the
stadium for the same shall be undertaken in relation to residential properties and shall accompany the
notification for such an event.

If appropriate. that assessment shall specifically refer to the Noise Council's Code of Practice on the
Control of Noise from Concerts or any such Code that may have superseded the same.

104




Dispersal

Where any regulated entertainment is held at the premises with a terminal hour of or later than 11.00pm.
the PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and responsible dispersal of
customers from the stadium at the conclusion of the event. The policy will aim to minimise any residual
impact on the local community caused by spectators leaving the site.

Within this policy. statf and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on leaving of the need
to do so quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the area. Notices shall also be displayed
near the exits to this effect and additionally asking those customers with vehicles to leave by the Kings
Park Drive exit.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that senior/supervising staff receive training on the policy and a record of
training shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The record will be retained for
a minimum of 6 months.

Noise Pollution

A Noise Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Environmental Health
team at least 21 days prior to the event or 28 days if a major event.

A "major event’ is one where capacity is expected to exceed 5.000.
Bottles will not be removed to any external receptacle beyond midnight or before 08.00 hours to minimise

noise disturbance to neighbouring properties. All outdoor external receptacles will be stored at the South
West corner of the site to maximise the distance from neighbouring residential properties.

e) The protection of children from harm

Underage Sales of Alcohol

Challenge 25 shall be operated at the premises at the point of entry and at the bars where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards. such as a driving
licence or passport / Holographically marked PASS scheme identification cards. Appropriate signage
advising customers of the policy shall be prominently displayed within the premises with particular focus
on the points of sales and entry points to the premises.

Under-18 Events

When operating an under-18 event. a risk assessment shall be completed and made available for inspection
by Dorset Police. BCP Licensing Authority. or other authorised ofticers on request. The assessment shall
take account of, amongst other things. the number and deployment of staff including security personnel.
and the measures to be put into place to prevent alcohol being available for under-age guests on the
premises.

Staff Training

All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall receive training on the law relating to prohibited sales. the
age verification policy adopted by the premises and the conditions attaching to the premises license. A
record shall be maintained of all staff training and that record shall be signed by the person receiving the
training and the individual(s) delivering the training. The records shall be kept for a minimum of 6
months and made available for inspection by Dorset Police, BCP Licensing Authority. or other
authorised officers on request.

Checklist:

105




Please tick to indicate agreement
® [ have made or enclosed payment of the fee.

® [ have enclosed the plan of the premises.

e | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where

X X X

applicable.
® | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual [ wish to be designated premises
supervisor, if applicable.

X X

® ] understand that I must now advertise my application.

® [ understand that if [ do not comply with the above requirements my application will be

X

rejected.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING
LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003,
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION.
Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 11).
If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date \t} S \Q‘VJ\ &l, ll" i

For joint applications, signature of 2" applicant or 2™ applicant’s solicitor or other authorised
agent (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what
capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 13)
AL Naug WEMIITW

BARIS 3 Tajwe

deaw Gars

e

Post own | Yuulmtrmaing | Posteode | Y} ¥ A&~

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with vou by e-mail, vour e-mail address (optional)

106



Notes for Guidance

)

L]

Describe the premises. for example the type of premises, its general situation and lavout and any
other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application
includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-
supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include
a tent).

For example the tyvpe of activity to be authorised. if not already stated. and give relevant further
details. for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
For example (but not exclusively). where the activity will occur on additional days during the
summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day
e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week
when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises. please tick “on the premises’. If
vou wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick
“off the premises”. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick “both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children. regardless of whether you
intend children to have access to the premises. for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-
nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.

Please list here steps vou will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

. The application form must be signed.
. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they

have actual authority to do so.

. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicant or their respective agent must sign

the application form.
This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

107



il 2 i y
I sy
’E i = ¥
£ 1
' H I |
. = il i3 i I O |1
8] L : A

CITET

Perimeter Site Plan

108



S Y pLitlegore=

5]
W pue E % -
@ Live® 3 Ly X 3 /
Hasp Training 3 N
“Q Q W
& /
The Wardrobe Genie < \\ o
9 @\
7,
% 4?0@ \\ //
% & (59 N
% v"do T //
%, 3, _ & . e o
Y Canna verdi 9 P : P
%, @ Garden Design < N o
AFC Bournemouth = NS fi
: Superstore Vitality Stadium
Bournemouth Limos P > at Dean Court J /
9 B ’ R :
¢ \ AFC Bournemout 3 :
Little Pines Day:Nursery d yy //
.' s
' Queens Park Garage % o
o A // \
© %, : o b
%, e \
“ _Kings Park, Bostombe
] Dynomite Matorcycles A Q /\\
Shap the latest gear - Q PN
Kings Park = v AN e
Cricket Ground N King's Park CarPark / Bournemouth
A AL Athletic Club
/ '-93.‘% /\\ ||‘
: e o % \
Sl ke o % Kings Park Road \J
itre - Safety Cycle Centre /
. @ @ ¢
B ” Tizwaz Rider Training d Kings P
\*0
s \C“g'-e,?'a 9 Holly Tr
Q M
I
R Kings park PlayGround 9

Y
tfb""ﬁL

Kings Park Leisure \
and Learning Centre
Google
c) A r._%



This page is intentionally left blank

110



Appendix 4

AFC BOURNEMOUTH, DEAN COURT, KINGS PARK DRIVE,

BOURNEMOUTH, BH7 7AF

APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCES

REPRESENTATIONS FROM OTHER PERSONS

NAME & REPRESENTATION
ADDRESS
James & Carol 15t Email

Hartley

Email;

I_| I
@

Licensing no reference: 219361 AFC Bournemouth

We wish to object strongly to the above licensing application
ref:219359 on the grounds of the noise from the people

leaving the venue late at night either on foot or by the noise which
would be generated by the increase in traffic Leaving the venue.

The surrounding streets will have increased traffic and parking and
littering issues of those leaving the venue on foot.

We have already experienced the noise and traffic generated by
people leaving the venue by a previous Boxing Evening as we live on
the main route of Holdenhurst Rd/Ashley Rd from AFC Bournemouth
when our sleep was Disturbed late at night.

Please consider our objection carefully.
James and Carol Hartley
2" Email

Hello Ellie,

Our address is:
T:

Licensing no references: 219359 and 219361 AFCBournemouth

We wish to object strongly to the above licensing applications
ref:219359 and 219361 on the grounds of the noise from the people
leaving the venue late at night either on foot or or by the noise which
would be generated by the increase in traffic leaving the venue.

The surrounding streets will have increased traffic and parking and
littering issues of those leaving the venue on foot.

We have already experienced the noise and traffic generated by
people leaving the venue by a previous Boxing Evening as we live on
the main route of Holdenhurst Rd/Ashley Rd from AFC Bournemouth
when our sleep was disturbed late at night.

Please consider our objection carefully.

111




Jon Hartley

Email:

Hello,

There are already issues with parking in the surrounding areas on
match days, living as | do in a road off Ashley Road. The potential for
late night events on non-match days will increase these issues and
those of noise and traffic in what is a public park and the surrounding
areas.

| object to the applications on the grounds of the hours going into the
early morning.

Regards,
Jon Hartley

112




113



This page is intentionally left blank

114



Appendix 5

From:

To:

Cc: Ellie King; Operations

Subject: AFC Bournemouth License Applications.
Date: 16 August 2024 15:27:47
Attachments: image949398.pnq

Good afternoon James & Carol

I write to you in response to the representation that you have submitted to BCP Council in
response to the applications for licensed premises submitted by AFC Bournemouth for Matchday
and Non-Matchday licensable activities at the Vitality Stadium at Kings Park.

Firstly, thank you for bringing your concerns to my attention, as the Vice President for Business
and Hospitality for AFC Bournemouth | welcome any concerns from nearby residents and the
opportunity to address those concerns as quickly as possible. | would like to put some context to
these applications, which are intended to replace the existing premises licence which is
considered somewhat difficult to interpret following a series of amendments over the past few
years. In submitting these applications, no additional licensable activities are being sought. There
are some small amendments to the operating hours, however, these are not anticipated to
impact on the licensing objectives (prevent public nuisance, prevent crime & disorder, prevent
harm to children or risk public safety) and the intention has been to simply ensure that all public
authorities (Police, Fire Service, Ambulance Service, Local Authority) and the public can have a
clear understanding of the conditions that apply to each of the activities that occur within the
Stadium. In short, attributing bespoke conditions to each type of event will ensure that as a
business we can be confident that we are complying with the licence conditions, and secondly,
we are more accountable to the responsible authorities (some of which are listed above) to
ensure that we are consistently meeting our legal and social obligations to the community.

In advance of submitting this application to BCP Council, AFC Bournemouth engaged with the key
responsible authorities, namely Environmental Health (responsible for noise and pollution) and
Dorset Police (responsible for preventing crime & disorder and maintaining public safety) for
them to suggest any additional conditions and to ensure that, in their professional opinion, the
licensing objectives would likely be promoted by these applications. Following a period of
mediation, AFC Bournemouth were able to make additions and amendments to the applications
which led to both authorities being sufficiently satisfied with the applications resulting in no
representations against the applications being submitted by them. No other responsible
authority has submitted a representation against these applications, and | hope that you may be
able to draw sufficient confidence that these applications have withstood the scrutiny of those
professionals in their various capacities.

I am, however, keen to address the specific concerns that you have raised in your representation.
I am disappointed that you are adversely affected by the increased noise from people and traffic
leaving the stadium. This is a concern for AFC Bournemouth, and we are constantly working with
our staff, contractors, partners, and public authorities to minimise the impact of large volumes of
people leaving the Stadium following an event. To demonstrate our commitment to tackling this
issue | can advise that during our periodical Safety Advisory Group meetings with the emergency
services the issue of ensuring a safe dispersal is regularly discussed and improvements made to

115



our procedures where possible.

Additionally, the following conditions have been created and offered within the applications to
ensure that AFC Bournemouth maintain appropriate accountability for the safe dispersal of
guests —

Football Events

The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual
dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of each fixture. The policy will
aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused by spectators leaving
the site.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that staff receive training on the policy and a record of training
shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The record will be
retained for a minimum of 6 months.

Any other events
Where any regulated entertainment is held at the premises with a terminal hour of or later

than 11.00pm, the PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the
safe and responsible dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of the
event. The policy will aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused
by spectators leaving the site.

Within this policy, staff and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on
leaving of the need to do so quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the
area. Notices shall also be displayed near the exits to this effect and additionally asking
those customers with vehicles to leave by the Kings Park Drive exit.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that senior/supervising staff receive training on the policy and a
record of training shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The
record will be retained for a minimum of 6 months.

You will note that the conditions relating to dispersal are bespoke for both applications to
manage the anticipated impact of both types of events. | hope that this will reassure you that we
are not simply applying a ‘one size fits all’ approach to this issue. Once again, these conditions
have been scrutinised by Dorset Police and Environmental Health and | hope that their agreement
to these enhanced conditions will help to address the concerns that you have been experiencing
to date. We recognise and regularly exceed the lawful responsibilities expected of a Stadium
which delivers football and other events. We are very keen to minimise any adverse impact from
our activities, but | hope that you will understand that there is also a limit to what is within our
reasonable control, particularly regarding the noise and nuisance caused by guests leaving our
site. Despite our requests for guests to respect the surrounding area, regrettably the behaviour of
a minority of guests may at times fall short of our expectations.

To support the above, the Revised Guidance, issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 offers some direction to support operators and to provide reassurance to the

community. The Guidance document is available online; however, the key parts are as follows —

2.16 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave

116



their premises. Measures that may assist include:

- Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

-Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and from
the premises and in car parks

Both measures are currently in place and will be maintained in the future.

2.27 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the
building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to
smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect
the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night

The above applies to all licensed premises and whilst this is a challenge for a site of our size, we
fully endorse the need to promote this approach for all licensed premises to take all reasonable
steps to reduce the impact of our events on the community. The detailed dispersal policies that
are required as part of the new applications will ensure that the necessary measures are in place
to promote a safe and responsible dispersal of guests from the Stadium, including those that are
recommended above. You have noted that the Vitality Stadium is in a busy area of Bournemouth
and unfortunately, whilst we work closely with the Highways Department at BCP Council through
the Safety Advisory Group to minimise the disruption and impact of those arriving and leaving the
area to nearby residents, there will inevitably be increased use of the road network for short
periods both before and following an event.

Finally, | note that you refer to your experience following the previous Boxing Event. | can
reassure you that Boxing / Wrestling are not licensable activities that have been included in these
applications. AFC Bournemouth is committed to delivering the highest standard of experience for
the benefit of guests, residents and those choosing to visit the Vitality Stadium for an event.

| am grateful for you bringing your concerns to my attention. | hope that the above additional
explanation will provide you with the necessary reassurance that these applications will promote
the licensing objectives to the benefit of the local community, including yourself. If you are
reassured by the information above, | would be grateful if you could discuss any increased
reassurance with the Licensing Authority at BCP Council who can advise you further.

If you wish to discuss your concerns with me further, please do not hesitate to contact me on
01202 726381 or by email at paul.fudge@afcb.co.uk and | will be pleased to answer any further
concerns.

Kind Regards,

Paul

117



Paul Fudge
Vice President, Business and Hospitality

)

AFC Bournemouth
Vitality Stadium
Dean Court

Kings Park
Bournemouth

BH7 7AF

01202 726300
www.afcb.co.uk

This email and its contents (including any attachments) is confidential to the sender and the intended recipient(s). If you receive this email in error
please advise us by replying to the sender of this email. Please also delete and destroy this email from any systems, together with any
attachments and any copies from your system immediately. Any unauthorised storage, use, disclosure, copying, distribution or dissemination of
this email or any part of it is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. The views expressed in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily

reflect those of AFC Boumnemouth.

AFC Bournemouth values the individuality and contribution of all its staff and persons engaged in club activities and is committed to ensuring that
all are treated with dignity, respect, sensitivity and equality. The club is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and
vulnerable adults and will ensure its actions and activities reflect this.

AFC Bournemouth Limited, Registered in England No. 6632170

118



Appendix 6

From:

To:

Cc: Ellie King;

Subject: AFC Bournemouth License Applications
Date: 16 August 2024 17:19:48
Attachments: image759749.png

Good Afternoon Jon

| write to you in response to the representation that you have submitted to BCP Council in
response to the applications for licensed premises submitted by AFC Bournemouth for Matchday
and Non-Matchday licensable activities at the Vitality Stadium at Kings Park. Firstly, thank you for
bringing your concerns to my attention. As the Vice President for Business and Hospitality for
AFC Bournemouth | welcome any concerns from nearby residents and the opportunity to address
those concerns as quickly as possible. | would like to put some context to these applications,
which are intended to replace the existing premises licence which is considered somewhat
difficult to interpret following a series of amendments over the past few years. In submitting these
applications, no additional licensable activities are being sought other than Indoor Sporting
events, which will be limited and will not have any externalimpact. There are some small
amendments to the operating hours, however, these are not anticipated to impact on the
licensing objectives (prevent public nuisance, prevent crime & disorder, prevent harm to children
or risk public safety) and the intention has been to simply ensure that all public authorities
(Police, Fire Service, Ambulance Service, Local Authority) and the public can have a clear
understanding of the conditions that apply to each of the activities that occur within the Stadium.
In short, attributing bespoke conditions to each type of event will ensure that as a business we
can be confident that we are complying with the licence conditions, and secondly, we are more
accountable to the responsible authorities (some of which are listed above) to ensure that we are
consistently meeting our legal and social obligations to the community.

In advance of submitting this application to BCP Council, AFC Bournemouth engaged with the key
responsible authorities, namely Environmental Health (responsible for noise and pollution) and
Dorset Police (responsible for preventing crime & disorder and maintaining public safety) for
them to suggest any additional conditions and to ensure that, in their professional opinion, the
licensing objectives would likely be promoted by these applications. Following a period of
mediation, AFC Bournemouth were able to make additions and amendments to the applications
which led to both authorities being sufficiently satisfied with the applications resulting in no
representations against the applications being submitted by them. No other responsible
authority has submitted a representation against these applications, and | hope that you may be
able to draw sufficient confidence that these applications have withstood the scrutiny of those
professionals in their various capacities.

I am, however, keen to address the specific concerns that you have raised in your representation.
| am disappointed that you are adversely affected by the increased noise from people and traffic
leaving the stadium. This is a concern for AFC Bournemouth, and we are constantly working with
our staff, contractors, partners, and public authorities to minimise the impact of large volumes of
people leaving the Stadium following an event. To demonstrate our commitment to tackling this
issue | can advise that during our periodical Safety Advisory Group meetings with the emergency
services the issue of ensuring a safe dispersal is regularly discussed and improvements made to

119



our procedures where possible.

Additionally, the following conditions have been created and offered within the applications to
ensure that AFC Bournemouth maintain appropriate accountability for the safe dispersal of
guests —

Football Events

The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual
dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of each fixture. The policy will
aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused by spectators leaving
the site.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that staff receive training on the policy and a record of training
shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The record will be
retained for a minimum of 6 months.

Any other events
Where any regulated entertainment is held at the premises with a terminal hour of or later

than 11.00pm, the PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the
safe and responsible dispersal of customers from the stadium at the conclusion of the
event. The policy will aim to minimise any residual impact on the local community caused
by spectators leaving the site.

Within this policy, staff and/or any door supervisors on duty shall remind customers on
leaving of the need to do so quickly and quietly and to have regard to those living in the
area. Notices shall also be displayed near the exits to this effect and additionally asking
those customers with vehicles to leave by the Kings Park Drive exit.

The PLH/DPS will ensure that senior/supervising staff receive training on the policy and a
record of training shall be kept/made available to an authorised officer upon request. The
record will be retained for a minimum of 6 months.

You will note that the conditions relating to dispersal are bespoke for both applications to
manage the anticipated impact of both types of events. | hope that this will reassure you that we
are not simply applying a ‘one size fits all’ approach to this issue. Once again, these conditions
have been scrutinised by Dorset Police and Environmental Health and | hope that their agreement
to these enhanced conditions will help to address the concerns that you have been experiencing
to date.

We recognise and regularly exceed the lawful responsibilities expected of a Stadium which
delivers football and other events. We are very keen to minimise any adverse impact from our
activities, but | hope that you will understand that there is also a limit to what is within our
reasonable control, particularly regarding the noise and nuisance caused by guests leaving our
site. Despite our requests for guests to respect the surrounding area, regrettably the behaviour of
a minority of guests may at times fall short of our expectations.

To support the above, the Revised Guidance, issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the

Licensing Act 2003 offers some direction to support operators and to provide reassurance to the
community. The Guidance document is available online; however, the key parts are as follows -

120



2.16 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave
their premises. Measures that may assist include:

- Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

-Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and from
the premises and in car parks

Both measures are currently in place and will be maintained in the future.

2.27 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the
building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to
smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect
the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

The above applies to all licensed premises and whilst this is a challenge for a site of our size, we
fully endorse the need to promote this approach for all licensed premises to take all reasonable
steps to reduce the impact of our events on the community. The detailed dispersal policies that
are required as part of the new applications will ensure that the necessary measures are in place
to promote a safe and responsible dispersal of guests from the Stadium, including those that are
recommended above. You have noted that the Vitality Stadium is in a busy area of Bournemouth
and unfortunately, whilst we work closely with the Highways Department at BCP Council through
the Safety Advisory Group to minimise the disruption and impact of those arriving and leaving the
area to nearby residents, there will inevitably be increased use of the road network for short
periods both before and following an event.

Finally, | note that you refer to your experience following the previous Boxing Event. | can
reassure you that Boxing / Wrestling are not licensable activities that have been included in these
applications. AFC Bournemouth is committed to delivering the highest standard of experience for
the benefit of guests, residents and those choosing to visit the Vitality Stadium for an event.

| am grateful for you bringing your concerns to my attention. | hope that the above additional
explanation will provide you with the necessary reassurance that these applications will promote
the licensing objectives to the benefit of the local community, including yourself. If you are
reassured by the information above, | would be grateful if you could discuss any increased
reassurance with the Licensing Authority at BCP Council who can advise you further.

If you wish to discuss your concerns with me further, please do not hesitate to contact me on
01202 726381 or by email at paul.fudge@afcb.co.uk and | will be pleased to answer any further

concerns.

Kind Regards,

121



Paul

Paul Fudge
Vice President, Business and Hospitality

AFC Bournemouth
Vitality Stadium
Dean Court

Kings Park
Bournemouth

BH7 7AF

www.afcb.co.uk

This email and its contents (including any attachments) is confidential to the sender and the intended recipient(s). If you receive this email in error
please advise us by replying to the sender of this email. Please also delete and destroy this email from any systems, together with any
attachments and any copies from your system immediately. Any unauthorised storage, use, disclosure, copying, distribution or dissemination of
this email or any part of it is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. The views expressed in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily
reflect those of AFC Bournemouth.

AFC Bournemouth values the individuality and contribution of all its staff and persons engaged in club activities and is committed to ensuring that
all are treated with dignity, respect, sensitivity and equality. The club is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and
vulnerable adults and will ensure its actions and activities reflect this.

AFC Bournemouth Limited, Registered in England No. 6632170

122



	Agenda
	4 Protocol for Public Speaking at Licensing Hearings
	5 Application for a Premises Licence at AFC Bournemouth - Match Days
	Appendix 1 - Existing AFC Bournemouth Licence
	Appendix 2 - Application form - Match Day Events
	Appendix 3 - Location Plan
	Appendix 4 - Copy of representations
	Appendix 5 - Applicant response to James and Carol Hartley
	Appendix 6 - Applicant response to Jon Hartley

	6 Application for a Premises Licence at AFC Bournemouth - Non- Match Days
	Appendix 1 - Existing AFC Bournemouth Licence
	Appendix 2 - Application Form - Non - Matchday Events
	Appendix 3 - Location Plan
	Appendix 4 - Copy of representations
	Appendix 5 - Applicant response to James and Carol Hartley
	Appendix 6 - Applicant response to Jon Hartley




